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" |__TO THE STOCKHOLDERS OF HYPERCOM CORPORATION:

\\\ 2001. WHAT A YEAR. WHAT A DIFFERENCE.
| | We ended 2001 on a very positive note — positive

| earnings per share for the fourth quarter,

positive EBITDA (earnings before interest,

taxes, depreciation, amortization and foreign
|/ currency gains and losses) for the third straight
quarter and positive industry acceptance of our
technology-leading products. That is far

different than how we entered the year. -

We started 2001 facing a variety of issues. We

//7 B ! were in technical default of our corporate loan | 8
\ ( covenants, a situation brought on in part by high D\ — N
) o ; research and development, and selling, general and
: & ; , administrative costs. It was also the result of costly rework issues on some of our new ICE™
| (Interactive Consumer Environment) products. We had also incurred higher than expected
g component costs, and high production costs when we were unable to quickly shift manufactur-
i ////A_ ing of the new product line to our lower-cost facility in China.
l\ “‘~¥_, % We spent a large part of 2001 focused on restructuring the company. We now consider
N ‘ Hypercom a “turned around turnaround” as our fourth quarter results so graphically
s : illustrate. Let us share with you how we did it.
[ |
| REFINANCED DEBT
\\\ E i In August, 2001, we closed on and received funding from a $45 million financing package
' 1 led by Foothill Capital Corporation. Concurrent with the financing, Hypercom raised
‘ $18.4 million in privately placed common equity. This debt and equity package entirely
L replaced the Company’s principal lending facility and gave us the working capital we
e needed to aggressively pursue our business strategy.

We are pleased to report that in March 2002 the Company completed another private
placement, selling 7.87 million shares at $5.00 per share. The proceeds have been used
primarily to pay down the high-cost debt from the August financing package. The remainder
will be used for general corporate purposes. This action significantly strengthens Hypercom’s

balance sheet and allows the company to focus on operations.

‘ RESET DEVELOPMENT PRIORITIES

i Since the majority of our R&D efforts to introduce the epic™ ICE platform had been

‘ completed, we were able to redeploy resources in some areas and scale back completely

in others. We reduced R&D spending by 29%, from $41 million in 2000 to $29 million
in 2001 — still a significant commitment to R&D — but one that reflects an effort tightly

focused on the return on that investment.

REORGANIZED SG&A FUNCTION
- > We restructured and reorganized our selling, general and administrative activities to bring

greater efficiencies within those functions without reducing their effectiveness.



REDUCED MANUFACTURING COSTS
Once the ICE product line became stable in early 2001, we could concentrate on reducing
manufacturing costs. Improved processes and new high-performance components resulted

in significantly lower production costs by the end of 2001.

TARGETED HIGHER MARGIN BUSINESS

The versatility and increased functionality of the ICE terminal platform has allowed us
to pursue opportunities to develop higher margin business, both in the traditional point-
of-sale as well as the non-traditional point-of-transaction market, such as EBT (electronic

benefit transfers) and age verification. We successfully launched this strategy in 2001 and
we will continue to exploit it in 2002. ‘ /

OUR STRATEGY FOR 2002 AND BEYOND ,‘
Even though a backward glance tells us where we've been, we spent just !

s much time

i

positioning ourselves to deliver a new strategy going forward. Our strategy has a three- \

|

part approach and we are very excited about the opportunities it presents: |

e

RETOOL THE COST STRUCTURE

We focused on improving margins and reducing expenses — and we madn)z that part of the :

culture at Hypercom. We are reviewing and retooling the cost structure, [formally on a

|

quarterly basis and informally at every opportunity, to ensure that we are applying our

resources in the most appropriate manner. Moving production to our fagility in China

was a significant factor in improving gross margins. 1 \

PROVIDE COMPELLING
REASONS TO BUY -
Everything we are doing to further improve :,
the features and functionality of our products \ N
is focused on giving our customers compelling ' ;\‘“‘
reasons to spend their dollars on Hypercom — \\
" products. We want to help them preserve ] /:} }
their revenues, increase their revenues or } ///
decrease their expenses. For example, our e 1«/\/
electronic receipt capture (ERC) feature - ,\\\
eliminates the need for merchants to retain \\_/"? #
the paper copy of the transaction. In the //
event of a disputed charge, the electronic i:—ﬁ‘
receipt can be retrieved very quickly from the ~ <

server it resides on, wherever located, and for-

warded to the consumer. This also reduces

the number of calls that a processor’s help desk must conduct to resolve a disputed charge. )




LEVERAGE OUR CORE COMPETENCIES

Hypercom is seen as the technology leader who sets the standards for our industry. Our
longer-term strategy is to leverage our core competencies and assets into future growth
opportunities based on the versatility and capability of our very successful ICE product
line. One of our primary core competencies is in the area of secure transactions. We have

| successfully been transmitting financial information quickly and securely for many years.
We are exploring a variety of markets outside the payments industry where we can leverage

this same expertise.

|| WHAT WILL DRIVE OUR GROWTH

N
[ / VERSATILITY |
" Y

\ ) ) . ; .
N The new POS terminals have provided us entry into new markets. We are |already seein
p Y ; y g
/ . . . . . !
| — . movement into non-point-of-sale settings with the success of the 100+ VARs (value-added
\ o p g {
F\ —- resellers) who are writing applications suitable

to our terminals. These applications are in

//‘ i such diverse areas as prepaid cards, such as
‘/ﬁ phone cards, electronic benefit transfers (EBT),
N

Lo age verification, sports licensing (hunting,

\>» - fishing) and gaming activities.
r’/ [ | NEWTRENDS
\"\ S Added value and memory upgrades
‘ ’ | Several trends will fuel the growth of POS terminals. Many of our customers are asking for
i more sophisticated applications to be embedded in our terminals to perform a multitude of
- tasks. Not only does this require new features, but it also requires greater memory capacity
- on the terminals. Loyalty programs at the point-of-sale are a good example of such an

application. This will be a factor in the drive to replace existing card payment terminals.

Hypercom can meet this demand now.

/7

Smart card technology

= & ‘ Another trend is the movement toward chip (smart) card-based technologies, especially

. | outside of the U.S. This will require an upgrade of existing terminals in order to read the
smart cards. Worldwide, we are currently shipping 80 percent of our new ICE terminals with

smart card readers installed. We expect this will provide significant growth opportunities.

At the international level, Hypercom was not only the first company to achieve EMVCo
Level I compliance certification, but was also the first to have gained research certificates
for our equipment. The EMVCo Level II certification, which is a set of interoperability
cross-payment standards developed by Europay, MasterCard and Visa, is difficult to achieve
and one that reinforces our commitment to offering global support of mainstream secure

chip card technologies.




Fraud and identity theft
Industry trends also include rapidly escalating fraud and identity theft, the impact of
which is being felt worldwide. Smart cards will alleviate some of this fraud, but even more

advanced technology will be needed to ensure positive identification of the cardholder at

the point of sale or point of transaction.

Hypercom has developed a low cost biometrics-based ID verification solution thar is uniquely

suitable for large scale applications, such as the payment card industry and airline check-in
control. The technology works with existing magnetic and smart cards, and uses a fingerprint- |
derived number, called BioPIN (not the fingerprint itself), to match the cardholder to the
card presented. We expect to have pilots with early technology adopters in our marketplace
by the end of 2002.

EMERGING GEOGRAPHIES

The three most populous countries in the world, China, India and Russia, are beginning to

emerge with the infrastructure necessary to deploy POS terminals on a large scale. China is
ready now and is demanding the most technologically advanced products available. India
and Russia are developing the infrastructure to support POS terminals on a large scale in i

the foreseeable future.

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGE
The exciting opportunities using these advanced technologies are not available to our -
competitors yet — they do not have similar products with which to address these emerging }
markets. Hypercom has not only established this commanding lead in its industry, but has »

the vision and strategy, stable management, financial strength, valuable brand equity and

j e
superior service and support to take itself to the next level. : J__
FINAL THOUGHTS
Hypercom overcame some extraordinary difficuldes in 2001, requiring an enormous amount » - ~\
of effort and focus, and the total commitment of our talented and hardworking workforce. } N
At no time did the company view this process as a retrenchment. We took the opportunity " /, )
to fix what needed to be fixed while still focusing on the future. As a result, we ended the S //
year clearly on the upswing, retained our commanding technology lead, maintained our strong | - f“A\\
product momentum, and enhanced our global leadership position. Throughout the entire SN \
year, we remained focused on one primary goal: rebuilding ‘ ;_//"; /J
stockholder value. We achieved a great start. You have our i J
commitment that this is only the beginning. T
N

N /
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PARTI
Item 1. Business
Hypercom

We are a leading global provider of electronic payment solutions that add value at the point-of-sale (POS) for consumers,
merchants and acquirers, such as banks and processing companies. Our products include secure card payment terminals and web
appliances, networking equipment and software applications for e-commerce, mobile commerce, smart cards and traditional credit,
charge and debit card payment applications. Card Technology Magazine ranked us as the industry leader of point-of-sale terminals,
based on unit shipments, in 2000.

Our principal executive offices are located at 2851 West Kathleen Road, Phoenix, Arizona, 85053 and our telephone number is
(602) 504-5000. Our website is located at www.hypercom.com. The information on our website is neither incorporated by reference
into, nor a part of, this Report.

The Company

We are a leading global provider of electronic payment solutions that add value at the point-of-sale for consumers, merchants and
acquirers. Our products include secure card payment terminals and web appliances, networking equipment and software applications
for e-commerce, mobile commerce, smart cards and traditional payment applications, and micro-ticket leasing of terminals.

We operate through numerous divisions and more than 30 subsidiaries. Qur principal divisions include:

* Hypercom POS USA/Canada, which is responsible for our POS payment system operations in the U.S. and Canada;

+ Hypercom International, which is responsible for international marketing, sales and distribution of our POS payment systems
and enterprise networking products;

* Hypercom Network Systems, which is responsible for our enterprise networking operations;
* Hypercom Manufacturing Resources which is responsible for all of our manufacturing operations; and
* Golden Eagle Leasing, Inc., which is responsible for micro-ticket leasing of terminals.

With worldwide headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona, we market our products in more than 100 countries through a global network of
affiliates and offices in Argentina, Australia, Brazil, Chile, China, Germany, Hong Kong, Hungary, Mexico, Russia, Singapore,
Sweden, the United Kingdom and Venezuela.

We believe that we are the leading provider of POS terminals in the world, have the largest installed base in Latin America and are
the third largest provider in Asia/Pacific. In 2001, Card Technology Magazine ranked us as the industry leader based on unit
shipments in 2000. Our total card payment systems provide a fast, flexible and secure global transaction environment. Card-based
payment systems enable users to engage in payment and non-payment activities such as credit, debit and charge payments, electronic
benefit transfers, loyalty systems, coupon programs and medical claims and payments.

Our Network Systems unit develops, manufactures, markets and supports both standard and customized networking solutions to
support POS systems. Network Systems also provides custom solutions for general networking purposes.

We are the successor to an Australian company founded in 1978 by George Wallner, our Chairman and Chief Strategist. The
company's operations were primarily focused on Asian markets until 1987 when the company expanded its operations into the United
States. On June 5, 1996, we reincorporated in Delaware, and shortly thereafter, through a series of corporate restructurings, bccamc a
U.S. holding company for the operations of the Australian company and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

During 2001, we entered into a series of significant financing transactions.




In May 2001, our leasing subsidiary, Golden Eagle Leasing, In¢, securitized approximately $45 million of its lease receivables
through the sale of those receivables to Golden Eagle Funding Corp, its newly-formed bankruptcy remote subsidiary.

In June and July, 2001, we obtained various bridge loans totaling $18.4 million, $10.9 of which subsequently was converted into
shares of our common stock, and sold shares of our common stock to several investors, including some of the lenders in the bridge
loans. In August 2001, we replaced our principal credit facility with a new $45 million senior secured credit facility comprised of a
$25 million revolving credit facility and two separate term loans totaling $20 million, and paid off the remaining $ 7.5 million of the
bridge loans with a portion of the proceeds.

In March 2002, we sold shares of our common stock in a private offering to select institutional investors and high net worth
individuals. We used the net proceeds of approximately $36,150,000 from the offering to repay $18,750,000 of cutstanding principal
and accrued interest on the two term loans under the credit facility, to repay $3.4 million of outstanding principal and accrued interest
on loans from a director and principal shareholder, and to pay down $5,035,000 of outstanding principal and accrued interest under the
revolving credit facility. We will use the balance of the net proceeds for general corporate purposes.

Industry Background
Stand-alone payment terminals were introduced over 18 years ago to provide the simple task of authorizing a credit card payment,
Over the years, they have evolved from authorization-only devices into small computers capable of performing numerous applications,
such as debit transactions and loyalty programs.
In recent years, consumers demanding fast, convenient and secure methods of payment have increasingly preferred card-based
payments. The increasing use of debit, credit and charge cards and the proliferation of new electronic payment methods and program%
are driving the need for POS payment systems which:
» support a wide array of payment and program options,

» are scalable, flexible and cost-effective,

» provide fast, secure data transmission, and

+ can work with existing legacy systems, which form the backbone of the electronic payments industry. ?

Many of today's installed base of POS terminals are relatively old and, we believe, need to be replaced to handle the mcreaseé
volume and data-intensive applications which are projected for the POS market. In addition, the components of current POS payme
systems typically are supplied by multiple vendors, which may affect interoperability, scalability and upgradeability. W

New electronic payment technologies are expected to facilitate the introduction of additional electronic payment applications’,:.
These include sophisticated customer loyalty programs and stored value (or "smart") cards, and the use of POS systems in new vertical
industries, such as health care and the electronic payment of government benefits, which is already available in several states and is
required to be available for federal programs. {

|

In addition, merchants and banks are working together to eliminate processes which are costly and time consuming by combinirfg
legacy and new POS systems, including the use of the POS terminal for processing checks (check truncation) and retrieval of
electronic signatures or receipts. In addition, the developing infrastructures of emerging markets, such as those in Eastern Europe,
Russia and China, are expected to contribute to the increasing demand for electronic payment products.

Today, the emerging trend in payment processing is toward customer-activated transaction terminals. As a result, the personal
identification number entry device or "PIN pad" is being replaced by a touch-screen terminal that faces the customer. In addition to
traditional financial transactions, the touch-screen terminal supports many new customer-activated applications such as loyalty
programs. Management believes that this trend will initiate and sustain a replacement cycle as merchants will be motivated to upgrade
their existing terminals.

According to the Nilson Report newsletter, based in Oxnard, California, "four card-based systems — credit, debit, stored value axid

electronic benefits transfer — accounted for 25.6% of total consumer payments in 1998 up from 24.0% in 1997. By 2010, their share
will increase to 47.1%. The biggest gain in market share of card payments will come from debit cards whose steadily increasing usage

!
B |




has the biggest effect on the declining use of checks and cash at the point of sale. Between 1998 and 2010 debit card volume will grow
by 780%, credit card volume will increase by 163%, electronic benefit transfer card volumes will increase by 444% (as these cards
replace paper food stamps), and stored-value cards (prepaid) card volume will increase by 481%. By 2005, stored-value and electronic
benefit transfer cards will become larger payment systems than traveler's checks and official checks are now."

Card payments through transaction terminals remain a critical application and they require specialized and secure payment devices
that will continue to occupy a place on the merchant countertop. But the trend is toward cardholder-activated transactions. There is
also an increased demand for electronic receipt capture. Additionally, the Internet has generated more e-commerce opportunities for
merchant websites, advertising and loyalty programs. The combination of these demands has created the need for POS terminals to do
more than just process payments with cards. The POS terminal is becoming a dual-function delivery platform — both an interactive
payment device and an Internet appliance.

Products and Services

We provide "system-level" products and services to our electronic transaction customers, including POS terminals and peripherals,
PIN pads, network access controllers and Internet-enabled, value-added applications. We offer our customers a full range of
functionality, from the basic to advanced, and can also provide networking and Internet functionality. In addition, we provide POS
support services.

Our terminal products include stand-alone terminals, compact terminals that have integrated printers and wireless terminals for
specific industry applications, such as automobile rental, restaurants and temporary merchant locations. Our terminal products are
designed for use with magnetic stripe cards, such as typical credit, debit or charge cards, as well as with smart or chip cards. Terminal
functionality ranges from routine tasks, such as credit or debit authorization, electronic draft capture and electronic batch submission
and settlement, to high level functions, such as customer loyalty programs, eligibility checking for health insurance or government
benefits, time and attendance data collection reporting and Internet access through the terminal. These products feature a modular
design to allow for easy upgrades as new technologies become available.

The principal peripheral products that interface with our terminals include printers, PIN pads, receipt capture devices and
communications products. Printers enable printing of customer receipts. PIN pads allow acceptance of magnetic-stripe and chip card-
based debit cards and other forms of payment requiring a personal identification number, and allow for support of customer-activated
stored value.

Point-of-Sale

EPic™, Our comprehensive Internet-based retail countertop commerce and information system, called ePOS-infocommerce™, or
ePic, is the industry's first Internet-enabled POS payment terminal and server system. ePic lets merchants support a range of Internet-
based functions via our ICE™ series of touch-screen terminals. In addition to traditional secure payment processing functions, ePic
supports e-mail, on-screen advertising, interactive electronic coupons, interactive loyalty programs, electronic receipt capture,
branding programs and e-commerce.

Hypercom ICE Products. Our ICE family of products consist of powerful, multi-function touch-screen terminals incorporating a
high-speed thermal printer, paper cutter, and our FastPOS™ modem technology. Our ICE terminal provides financial transaction
technology incorporated with Intérnet-enabled functions and a highly interactive and intuitive user interface to support complex
transactions with minimal user training.

In addition to traditional credit and debit functions, the ICE terminal is designed to support payment options such as smart cards,

* and develop new business opportunities through customer loyalty management systems. Products in this family include the ICE 5000

and ICE 5500, the ICE 6000 for the multi-lane retail environment, ICE 6500, the ICE 4000 for wireless transaction environments and
the Windows CE-based ICE 7000, for health-care, electronic benefit transfer and industrial-commercial markets.

These ICE models utilize FastPOS, our 9600 bits per second (bps) modem technology, which facilitates transactions in
approximately 6 seconds or less, and accommodates new, data-intensive applications such as electronic receipt capture. The ICE
terminals are also used in conjunction with proprietary transaction software, which, among other features, includes functionality for
secure Internet payments. : T S




FastPOS. FastPOS is a fast-train modem that operates at 9600 bps, which is four to eight times faster than the 1200/2400 bps
industry standard, thus providing a competitive advantage.

ePicPortz Software. ICE terminals and ePicPortz (formerly called Ascendent), a comprehensive family of front-end client/server
payment and data transaction processing software, supports electronic receipt capture, advertising at the point of sale and customer

loyalty programs.

With our ePicPortz™ Electronic Receipt Capture software, the receipt and signature are captured at the point of sale and stored
electronically. This creates a completely paperless environment, which improves merchant efficiency and service and reduces charge-
backs. Charge-back handling is completely automated as receipts are accessed electronically for satisfactory settlement. Merchants
can view and retrieve receipts through the Internet with a standard browser, print the data, or send it electronically to the appropriate
destination.

To support advertising at the point of sale, the touch-screen on the ICE terminals can display the merchant logo, promotions, o
other advertising. Onscreen messages can inform, cross-sell, motivate and build the brand image. Customized receipts with the
merchant logo or advertising message may offer discounts for future purchases, extend advertising impact and encourage repea
business.

Loyalty programs keep merchants in touch with their customers and inform customers of new rewards, alert them to special offers
or simply remind them to use their credit or debit cards. Data secured with loyalty cards can be used to make personalized customeq
service improvements. ’

ePicPoriz RealPay™ is e-commerce payment processing software that enables Internet acquirers to cost effectively engage 1ﬂ
secure online payment and transaction processing. RealPay helps Internet acquirers deploy and manage complex electronic and
advanced financial applications. By using an advanced, modular design, RealPay provides a comprehensive set of financial interfaces
that can be integrated into the existing technical infrastructure of a legacy system. !

EpicNetz™ |
|

ePicNetz, Inc. is our application service provider unit and is integral to our overall ePic corporate initiative. ePicNetz services are
currently offered in two packages. The basic merchant service package has electronic receipt capture, an e-mail product, and an idle
screen feature, which allows the merchant, bank or processor to take advantage of idle time on the terminal and project ads at the poing
of sale. The other package seeks to join the e-commerce world with the physical point of sale. The terminal can be tied directly to a.¢
e-commerce storefront. The merchant will be able to access the webstore through the terminal, print out a tear sheet, and distribute thé
products that have been purchased at their website. t

Services and Other Software )

We provide a broad range of services related to our POS payment systems and networking products. We provide consultinﬁ
services to: ]

|

+ assist with strategies and alternatives for POS payment systems, (‘

+ assist in the design, installation, integration and management of POS payment systems, and I

+ design customized software applications.

We also provide deployment, training, technical assistance, help desk, maintenance, and leasing services for our products.

Terminal Application Software., We work closely with our clients to develop standard and customized applications that operate
on our terminals. To date, we have developed over 80 terminal software applications, ranging from entry-level credit and debit
solutions to complex systems that support a comprehensive range of electronic payment and medical transaction functions. Among

these software applications are specialized applications for specific markets such as lodging, restaurants, multi-lane retail and healt;h
care.




Terminal Management Software. Every terminal application software program produced by us has a management and control
module that interacts with our Term-Master™ Terminal Network Management System. Term-Master is designed to provide mission-
critical functionality to users of our terminals. Term-Master is the basis for an integrated terminal management approach that supports
multiple merchant locations, remote and automated downloading of terminal application software, multiple application software
management, merchant terminal set-ups, performance monitoring and on-line diagnostics.

Networking and Connectivity

Our Integrated Enterprise Networking™ family of products are Network Access Controllers that provide the networking hardware
technology and communications infrastructure necessary to achieve, connectivity in the POS environment. Network Access
Controllers are intelligent communications devices that provide a wide range of digital and analog interfaces, line concentration,
protocol conversion, data concentration, transaction routing, backup transmission paths and multiple device interface capabilities that
allow access to high-performance data communications networks. Qur Integrated Enterprise Networking products greatly reduce
operating costs, protect investments in current legacy networks and offer a wide range of network technologies, such as X.25, frame
relay, asynchronous transfer mode, and Integrated Services Digital Network and protocol interfaces, including SNA and TCP/IP. We
deliver networking solutions for POS systems as well as design and deliver custom networks. The Network Access Controller product
line also includes the MiniNAC2, which connects automated teller machines, POS terminals and PC or in-store controllers to existing
hosts utilizing standard dial-up access.

Customers

Our POS Systems' customers are predominantly large domestic and international financial institutions, electronic payment
processors, independent sales organizations and resellers. These customers generally have substantial POS payment system
requirements. Our Network Systems' customers generally consist of large financial institutions, retailers, electronic payment
processors, resellers and other enterprises that have substantial branch networking requirements spanning an average of 200 sites. In
any given year, select customers may account for a significant percentage of net revenue. Although no one customer accounted for
more than 10% of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001, the two largest customers accounted for 12.7% of our net
revenue and the five largest customers accounted for 22.0% of our net revenue.

We place special emphasis on offering high-performance, technologically-advanced POS payment system solutions and
networking products to enable our customers to gain market share in their respective industries.

Sales, Marketing and Distribution

We sell our POS payment system solutions through our direct sales force and through independent third-party resellers, including
financial institutions, electronic payment processors and service providers. In fiscal 1999, we merged our domestic and international
sales, marketing and operations personnel, which are now managed from our Phoenix, Arizona headquarters.

Our marketing programs include trade shows, press releases, press interviews, speaker engagements, training and technology
seminars, sales collateral and white papers, print advertising, articles and newsletters supported by our marketing and technical
publications group.

Financial Information about Industry and Geographic Segments

For detailed financial information concerning our industry segments and foreign and domestic operations and export sales, refer to
Note 16 of the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Report.

Leasing Company

In January 2000, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Hypercom Financial, Inc., completed the purchase of substantially all of the assets
and business and the assumption of certain liabilities of Golden Eagle LLC, a micro-ticket leasing organization for POS terminals.
Hypercom Financial subsequently changed its name to Golden Eagle Leasing, Inc. (“Golden Eagle”). The purchase price paid at
closing was $18.5 million in cash and $4.0 million in our common stock.

Golden Eagle is focused on providing micro-ticket leasing (under $5,000) through nation-wide vendors of equipment in defined
niche markets that are not served by traditional lessors. Golden Eagle has identified two broad categories with less competition and




price sensitivity than traditional small ticket markets as its target markets. Credit card authorization equipment is the primary market
serviced by Golden Eagle. The credit card authorization market targets Independent Sales Organizations (ISO’s) and banks which
provide credit card authorization equipment such as our terminals and printers, and other non-bank ATM equipment. This market is
potentially large, relatively new and less competitive than other equipment markets.

Golden Eagle also targets distributors and manufacturers of emerging technology micro-ticket equipment, with a particular focus
on its ability to efficiently fund and service small individual or large multiple transactions for micro ticket equipment.

Our Golden Eagle leasing business is largely financed by a lease warehousing facility and the securitization of its lease
receivables. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in Item 7 of this Report.

Cirilium Corporation [
Hypercom Network Systems also designed carrier class gateway products for the VoIP (Voice over Internet Protocol) market. hﬂl
December 1999, we and Inter-Tel Incorporated, a Phoenix-based provider of business telephone systems, call, voice and data
software, services and products, formed a joint-venture company called Cirilium Corporation to address service provider apphcatlons'
in the VoIP market. Hypercom Network Systems transferred VoIP assets, technology and 46 staff resources to Cirilium Corporation,
During the third quarter 2000, we and Inter-Tel became minority owners of Cirilium, and we discontinued accountmg for our
investment under the equity method. Under the equity method, we reported losses arising out of our investment in Cirilium through
the nine months ended September 30, 2000 of $5.8 million. In the quarter ended September 30, 2000, we took a $4.1 million charge,
writing off the balance of this investment. During 2001, Cirilium ceased business operations. |

|
Through our facilities in Phoenix, Arizona, we provide pre- and post-sales consulting and application software development. In
addition, through our Horizon subsidiary, we provide support, installation services, deployment and customer support in addition to

comprehensive repair facilities for our products in St. Louis, Missouri. |

|

We provide a five-year warranty on our POS terminal products and one- to five-year warranties on other products. We believe tha%
our five-year warranty on POS terminal products has contributed significantly to our reputation for manufacturing high quality}
reliable products, and that this warranty results in a lower total cost of ownership than competitors' products.

Customer Service and Support

|

|

Manufacturing )
Our primary manufacturing facility is in China, where we manufacture POS payment systems. We also manufacture POS producté

at our facilities in Arizona and Brazil. We also rely on third-party suppliers for certain components of our POS payment system
products. |

To control product costs, we centrally manage our material requirements planning and bills of material from our Phoenix facility
on an integrated computer system, which is networked to all Hypercom manufacturing centers. By managing our purchasing centrally,
we are able to obtain discounts on volume purchases. We also strive to maintain sufficient flexibility in our purchasing to allow us to
take advantage of favorable pricing in regional markets. Central management of purchases also assists us in ensuring that quality
components are used in our products. Increased competition and pricing pressure, as well as rising manufacturing costs, have affected
and may continue to affect margins.

Research and Product Development

Since our inception, we have made substantial investments in research and development. With respect to our POS payment system
products, our development efforts are focused on products, including both hardware and software, that support new technologies and
payment products emerging in the electronic payments industry. We work closely with our customers to define new product concepts
and identify emerging applications for both our hardware and software products. Development projects are evaluated through a
management review process and assigned to our development centers based upon the potential value of the target markets, as well as
the technology, staff resources and engineering expertise requirements. ‘

|
)

-




We design and develop all of our products and incorporate, where appropriate, technologies from third parties and those available
in the public domain. Our product development units are principally headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona. Development staffs also are
located in Australia, Dallas, Texas, Hong Kong, Singapore, Sweden, Brazil, Russia and the United Kingdom.

The markets for our products are characterized by changing technology, evolving industry standards and frequent product
introductions. Our management believes that our future success depends in large part upon our ability to continue to enhance our

existing products and develop new products. We are dedicated to complying with industry standards and supporting important new
standards as they emerge. '

In the periods ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, our research and development expenditures were $29.1 million and $41.0
million, respectively. To date, a substantial majority of our research and development costs have been expensed as incurred.
Beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 1999, we began capitalizing costs in relation to the development of specific software
enhancements related to our ePicPortz software products. For the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six months ended
December 31, 1999 and fiscal 1999, we capitalized approximately $0, $0.2 million, $0.7 million, and $2.0 million, respectively,
related to ePicPortz software products. Additionally, during the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and the six months ended
December 31, 1999, we capitalized $0.6 million, $2.3 million and $0.8 million, respectively, of development costs related to the
development of our Windows CE, Web Browser and multi-lane products. Amortization of software development costs amounted to
$1.4 million, $0.9 million, $0.4 million, and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six months ended December 31,
1999 and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, respectively. During 2001 we significantly reduced our expenditures for research
and product development.

Seasonality

We continue to experience some degree of seasonality. For this reason, net revenue and results of operations are stronger from July
to December reflecting:

+ Increased POS purchases to satisfy increased retail demand during the holiday season;

» Incentive programs that VISA and MasterCard offer from July to December to encourage merchants to offer card-based
payment systems; and

» Allocation of customers' capital budgets by the end of March with volume shipments beginning in July.
Competition

The markets in which we operate are highly competitive and are becoming increasingly more competitive. With respect to our
POS payment system products, we compete primarily on the basis of ease-of-use, product performance, price, features, quality, the
availability of application software programs, the number of third-party network host and telephone system certifications we have
obtained for our products and application programs, rapid development, release and delivery of software products and customer
support and responsiveness. Software products compete on the basis of functionality, scalability, quality and support.

We compete with companies such as IBM, Siemens, NCR, ICL and Micros in the overall POS marketplace. In the POS terminal

portion of the marketplace our primary competitors are VeriFone, Inc., a privately held domestic company, and Ingenico, a France-
based company.

Many of our current and potential competitors have significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources than us, as
well as better name recognition and a larger customer base. As a result, they may be able to devote greater resources to the
development, promotion, sale and support of their products than us. We often face additional competitive factors in foreign countries,
including preferences for national vendors and difficulties in obtaining necessary certifications and in meeting the requirements of
government policies. See "Risk Factors — The markets in which we compete are highly competitive and subject to rapid
technological change and price erosion" in Exhibit 99.1 which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference into this Report.

Proprietary Rights

Our success is attributable in part to our proprietary technology. We rely upon patents, copyrights, trademarks and trade secret
laws to establish and maintain our proprietary rights in our technology and products.




!

|

|

|

We currently hold patents issued in the U.S. and several other countries relating to a POS terminal configured with a substantial

portion of its functionality at a remote processor and to a POS terminal with replaceable printer cartridge. We have determined to
abandon our United States and foreign patents relating to the POS terminal with replaceable printer cartridge. The remote processor-
related patents will expire: (i) in 2015 in the United States and the Philippines (ii) in 2016 in Australia, Canada, Japan, Mexico, New
Zealand, the Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, the Russian Federation, Singapore, South Africa and Turkey, and (iii) in 2017 in
South Korea. We also have a number of pending U.S. and foreign patent applications relating to our POS terminal products as well as
our Integrated Enterprise Networking product family.

We currently hold trademark registrations in the U.S. and numerous other countries for the "Hypercom" mark and logo. In\‘
addition, we have several other U.S. and foreign trademark registrations and pending U.S. and foreign trademark applications. |
: [

We embed copyright notices in our software products advising all users that the software is owned by Hypercom. We also place
copyright notices on documentation related to these products. We routinely rely on contractual arrangements to protect our propnetary
software programs, including written contracts prior to product distribution or through the use of shrink-wrap license agreements. We

typically do not obtain federal copyright registrations for our software.

There can be no assurance that other parties will not develop products or technologies that are equivalent or superior to those of
Hypercom, or that any patents, copyrights, confidentiality agreements and internal safeguards upon which we rely will be adequate to
protect our interests. See "Risk Factors — If we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary technology, our competitors may
develop products substantively similar to our products and use similar technologies, which may result in the loss of customers" in
Exhibit 99.1 which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference into this Report.

Industry Standards and Government Regulation
Before product sales are completed in the United States, our products must:

* meet industry standards as imposed by VISA, MasterCard, and others;

I
* be certified to connect to some public telecommunications networks; ,
+ comply with Federal Communications Commission regulations; and I

* comply with Underwriters Laboratories’ regulations,

We must also comply with state, federal, and international laws governing such areas as occupational health and safety, mim'mu:L
wages, work hours and overtime, retirement and profit-sharing plans and severance payments, and the use, storage, handling, and
disposal of dangerous chemicals. Before completing sales in foreign countries, our products must comply with local
telecommunications standards, recommendations of quasi-regulatory authorities, and recommendations of standards-setting
committees. In addition, public carriers require that equipment connected to their networks comply with their own standards. These
standards in part reflect their currently installed equipment. Some public carriers have equipment that does not fully meet current
industry standards. We must address this issue in designing enterprise-networking products. Although we believe our products
currently meet all applicable industry standards, we cannot guarantee that our products will comply with future standards. In addition,
carriers set the tariffs that govern rates for public telecommunications services, including their features and capacity. These tariffs are
subject to regulatory approval. Changes in the tariffs could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial condition. |

\
Employees ’
|

As of December 31, 2001, we employed 1,209 persons, including, in the U.S., 104 in manufacturing, 109 in service and support,
57 in sales and marketing, 117 in research and development and 114 in finance and administration. The remaining 708 employees
were in international locations. !

None of our employees is represented by a labor union, and we consider our relations with our employees to be positive. We have
experienced no work stoppages. ' ‘
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Competition for technical personnel in our industry is intense. To date, we have been successful in recruiting and retaining
qualified employees, but there is no assurance that we will continue to be successful in doing so in the future. Our future success
depends in part on our continued ability to hire, assimilate and retain qualified personnel.

Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following are the executive officers of the Company as of March 25, 2002:

George Wallner, 50: Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Strategist since November 1, 2000; July 1, 1999 — October 31,
2000, Chief Executive Officer and President; 1978 — June 30, 1999, Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Technologist.

Christopher S. Alexander, 53: President and Chief Executive Officer since November 1, 2000; July 1, 1999 - October 31, 2000,

}
|
|
i
'} President of Hypercom Transaction Systems Group; 1998-1999, Chief Operating Officer, Hypercom Corporation; 1993-1998 Chief
.\ Operating Officer of Hypercom International.

| Jonathon E. Killmer, 60: Chief Operating Officer since November 1, 2000 as well as Chief Financial Officer and Chief
| Administrative Officer of Hypercom Corporation since January, 1999; Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of
l Digi International Inc. from October 1996 to October 1998; Managing Partner of the Minneapolis/St. Paul Coopers & Lybrand L.L.P.,
| (now PricewaterhouseCoopers) office from October 1990 to September 1996.

( Jairo E. Gonzalez, 39: President of Hypercom Transaction Systems Group since November 1, 2000; President of Hypercom's
i Emerging Markets group, 1999-2000, also served as interim President of ePicNetz, Inc., an applications service provider (ASP) unit of
‘ Hypercom Corporation; 1990 to 1999 President, Hypercom International.

|

] Item 2. Properties
[ Our principal administrative facility is located in Phoenix, Arizona, where we own an approximate 142,000 square foot building.
¥ We lease an adjacent 23,800 square foot building for Hypercom Network Systems. The lease expires August 31, 2011.

‘} We lease an approximate 15,000 square foot facility in Sydney, Australia, own an approximate 23,000 square foot office floor in
‘Hong Kong, and occupy an approximately 17,000 square foot facility in Brazil pending the closing of our purchase of an
! approximately 102,000 square foot facility in Brazil. The Brazil facility is utilized for additional POS manufacturing capacity.

| We also lease office space in Arizona, Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Maryland, Missouri and New York. Facilities in Texas,
! China, Singapore, Sweden, Japan, Chile, Argentina, Venezuela, Mexico, Russia, Hungary and the United Kingdom, all are dedicated
E primarily to POS sales and support, with the exception of China, which contains our primary manufacturing facility. We believe that

: our facilities are adequate for our operations and will be sufficient for the foreseeable future.-

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

i From time to time, we may become involved in routine litigation. Currently, we are not a party to any material legal proceedings.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

| The Company did not submit any matters to a vote of shareholders during the fourth quarter of 2001.

|
\

|
|
|
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PARTII
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Shareholder Matters

The Company's common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange ("NYSE") under the symbol "HYC." The following table
sets forth, for the fiscal quarters indicated, the high and low sales prices for the common stock as reported on the NYSE.

High Low
Year Ended 12/31/01 ‘

First QUAarter .........ccovevevennvesnrenennanee . $ 3350

Second Quarter ........ 2.700

Third Quarter........... . 3.900 i
Fourth Quarter .........c.ccovevemnncacne. . 3.350 ’
Year Ended 12/31/00 |
First QUarter .....ccocooevueveccrionrneneennn $ 18.625 § 10.000 ;
Second Quarter.........coeeerevercniennnen 17.000 12.188 :
Third Quarter............... 14.500 9.188 !

Fourth Quarter 10.750 2.750 |

The Company has not paid any cash dividends on its Common Stock. The Company currently intends to retain its earnings for its
business and does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on its Common Stock in the foreseeable future. The Company's ability to
pay cash dividends on its common stock is also limited by certain covenants contained in a loan agreement to which the Company is a

party. See Item 6. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Cap1ta1
Resources”.

As of March 24, 2002, we had approximately 66 stockholders of record and approximately 3000 beneficial shareholders. ‘

Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table presents selected historical consolidated financial data of Hypercom at the dates and for each of the periods
indicated. In 1999, we changed our fiscal year end to December 31 from June 30. This change was effective December 31, 1999. The
selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements, related notes and the section of this
prospectus entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." Historical
consolidated financial data may not be indicative of our future performance. 1
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Six Month Period Twelve Months

Ended Ended Year Ended Year Ended
Years Ended June 30, December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
1997 1998 1999 1998 1999 1999 2000 2001

(in thousands, except per share data)

Statements of
Operations Data:
Net revenue...........

. $ 196,742 § 257227 $ 261,515 $ 136,577 $ 149,282 $ 274220 3 327,560 3 291,704
Costs of revenue(1)

103,672 130475 —141,831 68,884 81177 154,124 — 212,156 193,573
Gross profit.....cocoernr §_93,070  § 126752  3._119.684 B 67603 § 68105 £ 120,096 i 115404 i 98131
Percent of net

TEVENUE ..c.cvvrrnrrnncnerrinaen 47.3% 49.3% 45.8% 49.6% 45.6% 43.8% 35.2% 33.6%
Research and

development.........ccoueene £ 12926° $ 23,495 3 30,249 $ 15,850 $ 19,637 $ 34,036 3 41,039 3 29,107
Selling, general and

administrative ................ 52,530 72,506 74,772 35,253 43,505 83,024 97,408 79,971
Non-cash

compensation(2) ............ 4,784 10,963 - — — — = =

§ 105001 5 51403 £ _63.142 £ _117.060 i 138447 & 109,078
Income (loss) from

operations(3) ......coreivene 322830 $__19.788 §__14663 E__16590 34963 5 __3.036 S (23.043) 5 (10947)
Net income {10SS)(3) ........ § 15560 §_13989 § 90773 § 12359 § 5385 32199 i (30950 i ___(19.908
Net income (loss) per

share(d).....cccoermrricrnanes $ 060 3 044 $ 027 § 036 § 016 3 0.06 3 (0.91) 3 (0.54)
Shares used in

caleulations .....cooveeeeienes 25,754 31,830 34,428 34,549 34,446 34,436 34,184 36,643
Balance Sheet

Data:

Cash and equivalents ....... $ 16,318 $ 55,659 5 36,727 $ 37,795 $ 26,093 26,093 3 13,008 g 13,402
Working capital ., w 61,972 186,799 162,152 178,879 156,991 156,991 75,218 133,806
Total assets 138,741 259,577 276,280 270,410 297,777 297,777 369,237 337,694
Short and long term

[ 13T SR 24,570 1,797 10,878 2,188 10,830 10,830 100,391 67,888
Total shareholders'

CQUILY ..o ceneineoneaens 60,894 220,431 226,023 228,323 231,734 231,734 208,147 211,369
Other Data on .

Direct-Finance

Leases:

Average net investment
" in direct-finance

1e3588(5) v vvveerrerenesirinanes 3 51,428 3 50,782
Gross direct-finance

lease

OTIgINAtions(6) ........evvsene 67,488 27,656

. Net cash fundings of
direct-finance
TR ) W 42,310 18,061
. Average yield on
direct-finance
leases(8)......ccuvererrerarane 27.4% 27.6%
Provision for losses on
direct-finance
......................... . L . . 11,682 . 18,371
Net charge-offs(10). . 5713 11,288
Net charge-offsas a
percentage of average
net investment in
direct- finance
leases(11)..coovnicrnicaniaans 11.1% 22.2%
Provision for credit
losses on direct
finance leases as a
' percentage of average
' net investment in
] direct- finance
I leases(11)...
Allowance for

losses as a
percentage of net

investment in direct-

‘ finance leases(11) .......... 3.5% 12.1%

[}
5
o
>

22.7% 36.2%

(1) During the year ended December 31, 2001, Golden Eagle Leasing recorded, in costs of revenue, an incremental charge to
strengthen credit reserves for certain segments of its receivables in the amount of $7.2 million in addition to its normal loan loss
provisions. This incremental charge represents management's estimate of potential ioan losses that exceed its historical rate of
loan losses.
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(2) Non-cash compensation was charged in connection with stock options granted to an executive officer. Upon completion of our
initial public offering in November 1997, this form of compensation ceased and no charge was incurred in the third and fourth
quarters of fiscal 1998.

(3) In the quarter ended September 30, 2000, we wrote-off our remaining $4.1 million investment in Cirilium Corporation, a joint
corporate venture that we had formed in late 1999 with Inter-Tel Incorporated. Through September 30, 2000, we had accounted,
for our investment in Cirilium on the equity method and had reported $5.8 million in losses in connection with this investment.
This write-off and the reporting of these losses, in the total amount of $9.9 million, contributed to our net loss for the year ended
December 31, 2000.

(4) Per share data is diluted per share, except for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001, as the effect of common stock
equivalents in those years was anti-dilutive.

(5) Represents the average of the net investment in direct-finance leases, excluding initial direct costs and the allowance for credit
losses.

{6) Represents the amount paid out upon funding leases plus the associated unearned income.

(7) Represents the amount paid out upon funding leases.

(8) Represents the aggregate of the implied interest rate on each lease, inclusive of the residual value, during the period, weighted b)l
the amount funded at the origination of each such lease. J

(9) The provision for losses on direct-finance leases is included in costs of revenues as a direct cost of leasing. The increase in the
provision for the year ended December 31, 2001 is a result of the special charge taken in the first quarter of 2001 as described in
note (1) above. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” elsewhere in this
Report.

(10) Represents write-offs of uncollectible leases, net of unearned income, and net of recoveries from prior write-offs. Recoveries
generally take the form of a final settlement and buy out of the lease by the lessee, and are included in net revenues. We write off
the net investment balance of leases that are more than 120 days past due.

(11) The increase in percentage for the year ended December 31, 2001 is a result of the special charge taken in the first quarter of
2001 as described in note (1) above. See "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations" elsewhere in this Report. ,

Fora presentanon of certain of the above information on a quarterly basis for each of our four quarters in fiscal 1999, each of our
two quarters in the six months ended December 31, 1999 and each of our four quarters in the years ended December 31, 2000 and
2001, refer to note 19 of our audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2001 appearing elsewhere i m
this Report. ;

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following sets forth a discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations for the three years ended
December 31, 2001. This discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements appearmg
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements. Our actual results
may differ significantly from the results discussed in such forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such
differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed in Exhibit 99.1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K entitled "Cautionary
Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors," in the discussion below and elsewhere in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. ¥

For comparability purposes, certain portions of the following discussion make reference to comparisons between the year ended
December 31, 2000 and both the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. The comparison to
the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 is required pursuant to Item 303 of Regulation S-K. Although both represent twelve momﬁx
periods, we believe that a comparison to the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 is meaningful as it is a more recent period and fit
represents an identical year-over-year comparison.
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Resuits of operations for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 are unaudited. We changed our year end to December 31
and reported audited resuits for the six-month period ended December 31, 1999, in our Transition Report on Form 10-K. The amounts
for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999, referenced below were derived by combining the final six months of the year ended

! June 30, 1999 (as were presented in Forms 10-Q and 10-K for thc respective periods), with the six-month period ended December 31,
1999,

|
) Critical Accounting Policies And Estimates

| Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial
, statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. The
| preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets,
| liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent liabilities. On an on-going basis, we evaluate past judgements
| and our estimates, including those related to bad debts, product returns, long-term contracts, inventories, goodwill and other intangible
| assets, income taxes, warranty obligations, financing operations, contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical
. experience and on various other assumpnons that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.

We believe the following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition and Accounts Receivable

In general, we do not have a complex revenue recognition environment requiring significant judgment in order to record revenue.
Most of our sales relate to product shipments, which are recognized upon shipment of product pursuant to Staff Accounting Bulletin
! No. 101 “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” (SAB 101). Service revenues and revenues from long-term contracts are
! each less than 10% of our revenues and we do not have significant judgments or estimates involved in the recording of such revenues.
E Although we meet the requirements of SAB 101 upon shipment of product and the recording of revenue, we continually evaluate our
j accounts receivable for any bad debts or product returns and make estimates for any bad debt allowances or product return reserves.

‘? We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our customers to make required
| payments. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
l additional allowances may be required.

} We record reductions to revenue based on estimates of product returns. The estimate of product returns is based on historical
i return trends as well as our assessment of individual customer orders.and shipments... Such returns can result from customer
} nonpayment, in which we request that our product be returned, or a decision on the part of the customer to return the product.
!
\
V

Long-term contracts

! We are involved in one long-term contract with the Brazil Health Ministry requiring substantial performance of customized
‘ software and hardware, the revenues of which, have been less than 10% of total revenues for fiscal years 2001 and 2000, We
| recognize revenues and an estimated gross profit upon the attainment of scheduled performance milestones. The estimated gross
J profit is based upon our estimate of the total gross profit to be recognized over the life of the long-term contract. Our gross profit
| estimates rely on our continuous estimates of total contract costs compared to the agreed upon contract revenue. We follow this

: method since the contract contains well-defined performance milestones and we can make reasonably dependable estimates of the
" costs applicable to various stages of our contract. Recognized gross profits are subject to revisions as the contract progresses to
| completion. Revisions in profit estimates are charged to income in the period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become
. known.

| Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
{
\
| In assessing the recoverability of our goodwill and other intangibles we must make certain assumptions regarding estimated future
' cash flows and other factors to determine the fair value of the respective assets. If these estimates or their related assumptions change
! in the future, we may be required to record impairment charges for these assets. On January 1, 2002 we adopted Statement of
E
|
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Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” (SFAS No. 142) and will be required to analyze our
goodwill for impairment issues during the first six months of 2002, and then on a periodic basis thereafter. Our most significant
concentration of goodwill relates to. Golden Eagle, in the net amount of $20.4 million at December 31, 2001. There could be an
impairment charge as a result of adopting SFAS No. 142.

We write down inventory for estimated obsolescence or slow moving inventory equal to the difference between the cost of
inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market
conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.

Inventory

Deferred Taxes ‘
|

The carrying value of our net deferred tax assets assumnes that we will be able to generate sufficient future taxable income in certain
tax jurisdictions, based on estimates and assumptions. If these estimates and related assumpnons change in the future, we may be
required to record additional valuation allowances against our deferred tax assets resulting in additional income tax expense in our
consolidated statement of operations. We evaluate the realizability of the deferred tax assets and need for additional valuation

allowances quarterly. |

Warranty obligations
|
|

We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While we engage in extensive product
quality inspections and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates and repair costs to correct produc‘t
failures, Should actual product failure rates, or repair costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability

“would be required. The warranty liability is included in accrued liabilities in our consolidated balance sheets. ?
|

Financing Operations

Financing operations include the activities of our direct-finance lease subsidiary, Golden Eagle. Golden Eagle’s micro ticket \
leasing business is characterized by high incidences of delinquencies, which in turn can lead to significant levels of loan losses. We |
maintain an allowance for credit losses at an amount that we believe is sufficient to provide adequate protection against losses in our |
lease portfolio. Our allowance is determined principally on the basis of historical loss experience and management’s assessment of
the credit quality of the loan portfolio. If loss rates increase or the credit mix of our portfolio weakens, we may need to increase our |

allowance for credit losses. |

In addition, as part of the initial recording our direct-finance leases, we estimate the unguaranteed residual value of the equlpment
under finance lease. This is the estimated fair value of the equipment that will be returned to or purchascd from us at the end of thn
initial lease period. Our estimate of the residual value is based on industry standards and our actual experience. If market condltlons
change negatively, it could have an adverse impact on the estimated residual value amount. '

Foreign Currency

A significant portion of our operations is conducted through our international subsidiaries operating in foreign countries. Net
revenue from international subsidiaries amounted to 52.4% for the year ended December 31, 2001. ;

In accordance with the relevant accounting standards we are required to translate the financial statements of our foreign
subsidiaries from the currency in which they keep their accounting records, generally the local currency, into the United States dollar.
The treatment of such translation in our financial statements is dependent upon our determination of the functional currency of the
foreign subsidiary. The functional currency is determined based on economic and operational aspects of the foreign subsidiary.
Generally, the currency in which the subsidiary transacts a majority of its transactions, including billings, financing, payroll and other
expenditures, as well as any dependency upon the parent and the nature of the operations are considered in determining the functional

currency.

Based on our assessment, we have determined that the functional currency, at this time, is the United States dollar in all of our
foreign subsidiaries. This is principally based on the billing arrangements, dependency on the parent and nature of the operations. As

|
|
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a result of the functional currency being the United States dollar, any translation gains or losses are recorded currently in our
statements of operations.

As a policy, we hedge the translation of our net investments in foreign subsidiaries. Generally we will enter into forward contracts
with our banks to accomplish our hedging strategy. During 2001, we did not enter into any forward contracts or other instruments to
hedge our net investments in foreign subsidiaries as a result of credit limitations imposed on us by our banks. We attempted, when
possible, to use natural hedges (offsetting local currency assets against liabilities) to mitigate our translation losses. As soon as
practicable, we will again enter into financial instruments to hedge our net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

Contingencies and Litigation

On an ongoing basis management monitors the need to provide an estimated loss contingency arising from normal operations or
litigation matters. There are no such contingencies provided for at December 31, 2001. We rely on our in-house counsel and outside
counsel to advise us about ongoing litigation matters. Based upon information available at this time, we believe our current litigation
matters will not have a material adverse effect on the results of operations and our financial condition.

Overview

We are a leading global provider of point-of-sale terminals and electronic payment solutions for consumers, merchants, and
acquirers, such as banks and processing companies. In recent periods, our financial performance has been affected by a number of
factors, including most notably the following:

«  Over the past few years, until recently, our industry has been characterized by relatively limited technological advances. In
1998, we began development of a new generation of screen-based terminals that provide significant enhancements over legacy
products. Our new products use our proprietary ePic™ platform, which enables vendors to provide loyalty programs, capture
receipts electronically, accept mail orders via e-mail and provide other value added services or features at the point-of-sale. We
expended significant amounts in research and development in connection with this platform. We also absorbed significant
manufacturing costs during the latter haif of 2000 related to the introduction of these new products, their initial higher cost to
manufacture in the United States, the transition of manufacturing to China, and product reworking and stabilization. We
believe that our ePic™ products are gaining rapidly in market acceptance, that margins on these products should continue to
improve, and that research and development costs as a percentage of sales should decline.

+ At the end of 1999, we formed a corporate joint venture, Cirilium Corporation, with another publicly traded company, Inter-Tel
Incorporated. In connection with the joint venture, we contributed $5 million and networking technology, and Inter-Tel
contributed $6 million and certain telephony technology, all with a goal of creating a company to address service provider
applications in the Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) market. As a result of changes in market conditions relating to
technology companies in general and VoIP companies in particular, we wrote off our entire investment in Cirilium and took a
$4.1 million charge in the quarter ended September 30, 2000. Through September 30, 2000, we had accounted for this
investment on the equity method, and had recognized $5.8 million in losses as a result of our interest in Cirilium. This
investment was fully written off during 2000 and, therefore, we will not record any further losses in conjunction with this
investment.

+ In January 2000, we acquired Golden Eagle LLC (now Golden Eagle Leasing, Inc.), a micro-ticket leasing operation which
provides lease financing to merchants for point-of-sale terminals and other small business products. This operation required
significantly more cash than anticipated, did not perform as expected, and hampered both our liquidity and profitability during
2000. In the second quarter of 2001, we effected a securitization transaction to alleviate some of the liquidity pressures relating
to this business.

+ As a result of losses during 2000, in the third quarter of that year, we fell out of compliance with certain covenants in our
principal credit agreements. We became constrained from a liquidity standpoint, which impeded our ability to buy raw
materials on a timely basis and required that we move to more expensive sources of raw materials that effectively financed us
for longer periods of time. We also incurred substantially increased interest costs through the imposition of higher interest rates
and the payment of forbearance fees. We completed a series of financing and equity measures during the first and second
quarters of 2001 in order to alleviate our liquidity constraints. These measures included the issuance of common stock, and
certain bridge borrowings that were ultimately converted to common stock through conversion rights attached to the
borrowings, or from the payment of the interim borrowings with our common stock. Such financing and equity measures

17




amounted to $25.9 million. The borrowings also included the issuance of stock warrants, which contributed to our higher
interest costs. In addition, we completed a refinancing of our principal credit facility in August 2001, the terms of which are
described in "Liquidity and Capital Resources" below. Although these facilities provided us with increased liquidity, they were
relatively expensive sources of capital. Consequently, and as more fully described in Note 20 to our consolidated financial

statements, we paid off a significant portion of these facilities with proceeds from a private equity offering completed in March
2002.

* During 2001, one of our objectives was to improve the financial performance of Golden Eagle. As a result of our continued
focus on Golden Eagle, we recorded an incremental charge of $7.2 million in the first quarter of 2001 to strengthen credit
reserves for certain segments of Golden Eagles’ direct finance lease receivables. This charge was recorded in costs of revenue
and is further discussed in our comparison of the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

The following should be read in light of these matters. v |
Results of Operations |

The following table sets forth the operating results expressed as a percentage of net revenue for the periods indicated. Results for
any one or more periods are not necessarily indicative of future results. !
|

!

Twelve Months Six Months

Years Ended Ended Ended Fiscal Years
December 31, December 31, December 31, Ended June 30,
2001 2000 1999 1999 1998 _1999 1998
NEt TeVENUE....ccvvevenrrerrerrerireeeeerenenes 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs of revenue ........o.c.covecrcnnnnnnnane 66.4 _64.8 56.2 544 504 542 50.7
Gross Profit.....cceveererevecrinrirennserennes 336 35.2 43.8 45.6 49.6 45.8 493
Research and development...... . 10.0 12.5 12.4 13.2 11.6 11.6 9.1
Selling, general and administrative.... 274 29.7 30.3 29.1 25.8 28.6 28.2
Non-cash compensation........ccecevecne. — — — - — — 43
Income (loss) from operations............ (3.8) (7.0) 1.1 33 12.2 5.6 7.7
Interest and other income net of
interest and other expense................ (3.9) 0.9) 1.3 0.8 1.7 1.8 0.7 !
Foreign currency 108S........cococvvvvveenene (0.8) (0.6) (2.2) 0.2) 0.7 (2.6) 0.7) |
Loss from investment in equity ’ !
AffIHALE v _(3.0) — — — - i
Income (loss) before income taxes..... (8 5) (11.5) 0 2 39 13.2 4.8 7.7 [
Income tax (expense) benefit............. 17 20 0.6 _(0.3) _{4.1) (1.3 {2.3) ‘
Net income (108S).......ccocvuverreerrrencncs _(6.8Y% (9.5% _0.8% 36% _91% _35% _54% !
i

Net revenue by geographic region is presented in the following table as a percentage of net revenues for the periods indicated: |

Twelve Months Six Months

Years Ended Ended Ended Fiscal Years Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, June 30,
Revenues by Region 2001 2000 1999 1999 1998 1999 1998
United States.......cceceererrrevvmnevrenienns 47.6% 47.6% 49.1% 444% 532% 537% 42.9%
Latin America (includes Mexico).... 25.1 233 232 26.8 26.3 227 29.0 ;
Asia/Pacific 1.7 12.2 13.6 14.2 13.2 134 225 !
Europe 15.6 169 l4.1 14.6 13 10.2 36 f
TOtaALS ..ottt 100% 100% J100% 400%  100%  _100% _180% ;

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. *

Net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2001, decreased $35.9 million or 10.9% to $291.7 million from $327.6 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000. This decrease was principally due to the combined effect of a delay in the receipt of certain key
components during the nine-month period ended September 30, 2001, caused by constraints on cash relative to our default position
with our primary bank group and the tragic events of September 11, and an unusually high level of orders received from Latin
American customers in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2000, which did not recur in 2001. In addition, we reduced sales
during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2001 by $7.5 million to reflect a reserve for product returns. This reserve for product
returns related to one particular customer whereby we decided to take back product for the purpose of providing additional product
features and enhancements. These new features and enhancements were not included in the specifications at the date of the original

i
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sales, and we were not required to make the modifications under the terms of the original sale. We elected to make a customer
concession and provide the enhancements and have recorded this as a product return. Gross profit was reduced by $2.0 million dollars
during the fourth quarter ended December 31, 2001 as a result of this sales return. As the product is modified and determined to meet
the customer’s revised requirements, we will record sales when all requirements of SAB 101 are met.

Net revenues from services activities, principally derived from POS support services, comprised less than 10% of total net revenue
in each of the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. Long-term contract revenues during these periods were derived solely from
our contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry, which commenced in the second half of 2000. Net revenues from this contract
amounted to less than 10% of total net revenue in each of the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000.

Our cost of revenue includes the cost of raw materials, manufacturing labor, overhead and subcontracted manufacturing costs, as
well as interest expense and loan loss provisions with respect to direct financing leases. For the year ended December 31, 2001, costs
of revenue decreased $18.6 million or 8.8% to $193.6 million from $212.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Interest
expense included in cost of revenues amounted to $3.8 million and $4.9 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2001
and 2000. Loan loss provisions included in cost of revenue amounted to $18.1 million and $11.7 million, respectively, for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000. Gross margin decreased $17.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to the
prior year.

This decrease in gross margin was primarily attributed to the lower revenues, including the effects of our sales return discussed as
part of the decrease in net revenues from 2000 to 2001, and an incremental charge of $7.2 million to strengthen credit reserves for
certain segments of Golden Eagle's direct finance lease receivables, in addition to the normal loan loss provisions recorded in cost of
revenues. This incremental charge represents management's estimate of potential loan losses that exceed its historical rate of loan
losses.

The following factors contributed to Golden Eagle's decision in the first quarter of 2001 to strengthen credit reserves:

* We identified several new vendor programs that were established in 2000 and contributed significantly to funding volume in
2000, which were experiencing losses at higher levels than historic loss levels for other vendor programs. These programs
involved independent sales organizations providing additional services to the merchants (lessees) as part of the lease program.
If service levels were not as the merchants expected, the likelihood of their making required lease payments was reduced.
Losses for these programs began to exceed historical levels for the quarter ended March 31, 2001;

» Leases funded for electronic payments software, such as payment software loaded into a personal computer without the need
for a terminal, were at higher funding levels in 2000 than in previous years. Performance on these leases worsened in the first
quarter of 2001;

» The overall credit mix of the portfolio was slightly skewed by a-few percentage points toward higher risk credits, commonly
described as C and D rated credits. C and D credit leases booked in the year 2000 appeared to be performing significantly
worse than C and D credits in previous years as we analyzed activity through March 31, 2001; and

» The overall softening of the economy at the start of 2001, coupled with the results of our analysis of collection status and
default trends as of March 31, 2001, also contributed to the conclusion that the increase in reserves would be appropriate.

Golden Eagle's micro ticket leasing business is characterized by high incidences of delinquencies, which in turn can lead to

 significant levels of loan losses. However, based on historical default rates and our credit assessments, we believe collectibility of the
' minimum lease payments is reasonably predictable.

Continued losses that exceed historical trends could result in the substantial impairment of Golden Eagle's goodwili, which
amounted to $20.4 million, net as of December 31, 2001,

As a percentage of revenue, gross margin decreased from 35.2% for the year ended December 31, 2000 to 33.6% for the year
ended December 31, 2001. Exclusive of the $7.2 million incremental credit reserve, the gross margin percentage for the year ended
December 31, 2001 increased to 36.1%. This increase was primarily attributable to the stabilization of the ICE product family during
2001. During the year ended December 31, 2000, we experienced margins of approximately 41% through June 30, 2000 due to a
larger portion of sales from the higher margin legacy products. This higher margin through June 30, 2000 was offset during the third
quarter of 2000 by the shift in product mix toward the ICE product, increased manufacturing costs due to the greater than anticipated
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manufacturing volumes in the U.S. versus China, transition costs of moving the production for the ICE product family to China,
higher component costs resulting from increased purchases from distributors (who offered extended credit terms but higher prices) and
costs related to reworking and stabilizing the new screen based family of terminals.

Our research and development expenses consist mainly of software and hardware engineering costs and the cost of development
personnel. Our research and development expenses decreased $11.9 million or 29.1% from $41.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2000 to- $29.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. This decrease was directly attributable to our cost cutting efforts of
reducing personnel and curtailing spending for research and development materials. Since substantially all development activities
related to the introduction of the interactive consumer environment (ICE) product family and the ePic initiative were completed in
2000, the overall level of research and development activities has been reduced. Present development activities are primarily focusing
on reducing the component costs of existing products and to a much lesser extent, new product introductions. ‘

Our sales and marketing expenses, administrative personnel costs, and facilities operations make up the selling, general and'
administrative expenses. These expenses totaled $80.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $97.4 million for
the year ended December 31, 2000. This $17.4 million or 17.9% decrease is attributable to worldwide cost containment measures,.
including the reduction of personnel, closing of certain offices throughout the world and the lowering of administration costs,
associated with having reduced personnel levels, such as employee benefits, recruitment and information technology, together with the
decreased revenue relative to the same period in the prior year, which results in lower sales commission expenses. i

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the loss from operations of $10.9 million compares to a loss of $23.0 million for the prior
year. This improvement results primarily from reductions in research and development and selling, general and admnustrahve
expenses of $29.3 million offset by the decrease in gross margin of $17.3 million.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, interest income of $0.6 million consisted primarily of returns on short and long-term
investments. We incurred interest expense of $9.7 million which consisted primarily of interest expense on borrowings for notes
payable, long-term debt, amortization of debt issuance costs and loan discounts on warrants issued, and the amortization of a
beneficial conversion feature on convertible notes payable. Other income and expense in the amount of $2.4 million consisted
primarily of charges associated with the requirements under the Forbearance and Modification Agreement between us and our
principal lenders and other related costs associated with being in default with our lenders. Foreign currency losses of $2.4 million
resulted principally from the unfavorable translation of our net foreign investments in Brazil and the United Kingdom. Further, as a
result of being in default with our lenders, we were unable to continue our hedging strategies during the year ended December 31,
2001.

For the year ended December 31, 2001, the income tax benefit for federal, state and foreign taxes was $5.0 million, or 20.0% of
our loss before income taxes. The benefit for federal, state and foreign taxes was $6.6 million, or 17.7% of our loss before income
taxes for the year ended December 31, 2000. Our income tax benefit is different than the U.S. federal statutory rate due to the mix in
which jurisdictions certain taxable income or losses were incurred, the impact of research and experimentation credits, and charges
relating to the estimated portion of certain deferred tax assets that management estimates may not be recoverable.

Comparison of year ended December 31, 2000 and the twelve months ended December 31, 1999

Revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000 were $327.6 million, a 19.5% increase or $53.3 million over the twelve months
ended December 31, 1999 and a 25.3% increase or $66.1 million over the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. The increase over the
twelve months ended December 31, 1999 was due primarily to increased POS Systems revenue of $34.5 million and $25.4 million of
revenue that resulted from the acquisition of Golden Eagle Leasing, offset by a decline in revenues of Network Systems of $6.4
million due to the transfer of this unit's VoIP operation to Cirilium Corporation, a joint venture formed with Inter-Tel Incorporated.
The increase for the year ended December 31, 2000 over the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 was due to increased POS Systems
revenue of $52.9 million, and the $25.4 million of revenues from Golden Eagle Leasing, offset in part by the decline in revenues of
Network Systems by $11.7 million, as previously explained.

The increase in POS Systems revenue in 2000 reflected continued strong growth in Europe ($16.9 million increase over the twel\“'re
months ended December 31, 1999 and $28.8 million increase over the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999) and in Latin America ($12.8
million increase over the twelve months énded December 31, 1999 and $16.9 miilion increase over the fiscal year ended June 30,
1999). Asia showed a slight decline in growth, while the U.S. remained flat.
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Net revenues from services activities, principally derived from POS support services, comprised less than 10% of total net revenue
in the years ended December 31, 2000 and 1999. In 1999, none of our net revenues were attributable to long-term contracts. Our only
revenues from long-term contracts in 2000 were derived from our contract with the Brazilian Health Ministry, which commenced in
the second half of 2000. Net revenues from this contract accounted for less than 10% of total net revenue in the year ended December
31, 2000.

Our cost of revenue includes the cost of raw materials, manufacturing labor, overhead and subcontracted manufacturing costs, as
well as interest expense and loan loss provisions with respect to Golden Eagle's direct financing leases. Interest expense included in
cost of revenues amounted to $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Loan loss provisions included in cost of revenues
amounted to $11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. Such loan loss provisions represent systematic charges for
uncollectible loans based on historical default rates and management's assessment of the credit quality of the loan portfolio. Golden
Eagle's micro ticket leasing business is characterized by high incidences of delinquencies, which in turn can lead to significant levels
of loan losses. However, based on historical default rates and our credit assessments, we believe collectibility of the minimum lease
payments is reasonably predictable. The provision amount for year 2000 was consistent with historical trends and considered ordinary
relative to the quantity and quality of direct finance lease activity through December 31, 2000.

Gross profit as a percentage of net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000 decreased to 35.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2000 from 43.8% for the twelve months.ended December 31,1999 and from 45.8% for the fiscal year ended June 30,
1999. This decline in gross margins occurred throughout 2000, principally due to certain higher component costs, changes in product
mix and competitive pricing pressures. During the year ended December 31, 2000, a worldwide shortage in key electronic
components, such as memory chips, resulted in an increase in the cost of our raw material terminal components of up to 6% over
1999. Margins were particularly weak in the three months ended September 30, 2000, due to a significant shift in product mix
resulting from the sale of our new screen-based family of terminals, which at this time produce significantly lower gross margins than
our legacy products. This shift was directly attributed to the timing at which we could produce the new screen-based terminals at
higher volume levels. The competitive pricing pressures stem principally from the expanding presence of other terminal and electronic
payment devise vendors throughout the world primarily directed toward our legacy terminal product line. In addition, due to the
introduction of a significantly expanded product line, we increased our warranty reserves during the year ended December 31, 2000.
We also experienced higher manufacturing expenses during the year ended December 31, 2000 due to increased production in the
United States, as the new products were initially introduced. By the end of 2000, substantially all production of the new products had
been moved to our manufacturing facility in China.

Selling, general and administrative expenses for the year ended December 31, 2000 were $97.4 million, or an increase of $14.4
million or 17.3% over the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 and an increase of $22.6 million or 30.3% over the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999. This increase is due to our ePicNetz development activity, overall increased sales activity, plus the impact of the
Golden Eagle Leasing acquisition, including goodwill amortization of approximately $1.5 million.

Research and development expenses consist primarily of sofiware and hardware engineering costs and the cost of development
personnel. For the year ended December 31, 2000, research and development expense amounted to $41.0 million, as compared to
$34.0 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 or a 20.6% increase, and $30.2 million for the fiscal year ended June
30, 1999 or a 35.7% increase. This increase was due to the planned investment in new product development intended to maintain our
competitive edge. Additionally, the impact of various acquisitions for a full year has resulted in new research and development
expenditures relative to the prior periods.

Income from operations decreased $26.1 million and $37.7 million from the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 and the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, respectively, as the results for the year ended December 31, 2000 produced an operating loss of $23.0
million. The principal contributors to this reversal from the operating income of $3.0 million and $14.7 million achieved in the tweive
months ended December 31,1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, respectively, were the decline in gross profit, the increase in
research and development costs and the increase in selling, general and administrative expenses, including goodwill.

Net interest expense for the twelve months ended December 31, 2000 amounted to $2.8 million, reflecting both higher borrowings
to meet working capital needs and higher interest costs. During 2000, we entered into a $60 million revolving credit agreement
provided by a syndicate of banks. The increased borrowings were required to fund operating losses and to meet demands for funds
from Golden Eagle Leasing, our newly acquired leasing company. Net interest income for the twelve months ended December 31,
1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 was $3.5 million and $4.7 million, respectively, reflecting income from short and long-
term investments, net of interest expense incurred related to short term bank borrowings.
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The loss from Cirilium of $9.9 million represents our equity share of Cirilium losses for the year ended December 31, 2000 plus an
additional charge of $4.1 million, related to reserves against operating advances made to Cirilium and inventory have used for
Cirilium production recorded during the three months ended September 30, 2000. As of December 31, 2000, we have no remaining
basis in our investment in Cirilium. The write-offs were taken as a result of Cirilium's continuing operating losses. In addition, as a
result of an investment made by Cirilium's CEQ, we have become less than a 20% owner of Cirilium and have discontinued, after
September 30, 2000, accounting for our investment under the equity method.

The foreign currency loss for the year ended December 31, 2000 amounted to $1.9 million compared to a loss of $6.2 million and
$6.8 million for the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, respectively. The decrease is
due in part to the stabilization of the Brazilian Real as well as to the employment of hedging strategies, which began in the second |
quarter of 1999 and are used to mitigate the impact of future foreign currency fluctuations. |

For the year ended December 31, 2000, the income tax benefit for federal, state and foreign taxes was $6.6 million. The benefit for
federal, state and foreign taxes was $1.8 million for the year ended December 31, 1999 and the provision for income taxes for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 was $3.4 million. Our tax benefit provision is different than the U.S. federal statutory rate due to the
mix in which jurisdictions certain taxable income or losses were incurred, the impact of research and experimentation credits in
Australia and the United States, and sales in jurisdictions with lower taxes, or tax holidays.

Comparison of Six Months Ended December 31, 1999 and 1998

For the six months ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, net revenues increased 9.3% or $12.7 million from $136.6 million to
$149.3 million, principally due to revenue growth in Europe ($11.8 million), Asia (33.2 million) and Latin America ($4.1 million).|
The significant increase in European sales was due to a rapid expansion of the customer base in an emerging market for us as well as|
the acquisition of ICL Financial Terminals in Sweden. Additionally, new product releases such as the ICE 5000 stimulated mcreascd“
sales particularly in the United Kingdom, Turkey, and Eastern Europe. Net revenue increases in Asia and Latin America are primarily;
related to the stabilization of those foreign economies and currencies. \

For the six months ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, Network Systems revenue decreased $5.3 million or 33.3% from $15. 9
million to $10.6 million. The decrease was primarily due to the transfer of this unit's VoIP operations to Cirilium. Revenue fro ‘
Voice over Internet Protocol customers declined in anticipation of the formation of the new joint venture. In addition, Network
Systems personnel spent significant time planning the reorganization of the business unit and refocusing the sales and development
efforts which contributed to the reduced revenue from Network Systems for the six-month period. |

I
i

Net revenues from service activities, principally derived from POS support services, during the six months ended December 31
1999 and 1998 amounted to less than 10% of total net revenue. |

Gross profit as a percentage of net revenue decreased from 49.6% to 45.6% for the six months ended December 31, 199J,
compared to the six months ended December 31, 1998. The decrease was related to the impact of the acquisition of substantially al}
the assets of the Horizon Group Inc. ("Horizon"). Horizon typically operates on a much lower gross margin percentage than historical
Hypercom gross margin percentages and, as a result, has a dilutive effect on overall gross margin. Horizon was acquired on October 1;
1998 and thus we only included three months of Horizon financial results in the six-month period ended December 31, 1998. As a
result, Horizon's dilutive impact on our gross margin (1.8%) for the six months ended December 31, 1998 was less than for the six
months ended December 31, 1999. Horizon's financial results for the six-months ended December 31, 1999 included net revenue of
$14.9 million resulting in a gross margin of $1.4 million or 9.3%. These results had a much more signiﬁcant effect (4.0%) on our
overall gross margin for the six months ended December 31, 1999. Additionally, increased competition and pricing pressure, as well
as rising manufacturing costs related to some electromc component supply shortages have affected, and may continue to affect,
matgms J

Selling, general and administrative expense increased 23.4% or $8.2 million to $43.5 million for the six months ended Decembe“
31, 1999, compared to $35.3 million for the comparable six-month period ended December 31, 1998. These increases were primaril
due to additional basic corporate infrastructure in Phoenix, Arizona related to accounting, legal and human resources and informatio
systems. Additionally, we incurred significant increases in U.S., Asian, and Australian selling expenses, as well as additional overheag
related to the acquisitions of Horizon and ICL Financial Terminals and the establishment of the ePicNetz services group.
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Research and development expense increased 23.9% or $3.8 million to $19.6 million for the six months ended December 31, 1999
compared to $15.8 million for the six months ended December 31, 1998. This increase was consistent with our planned investment in
new product development intended to maintain our competitive edge.

Income from operations decreased 70.1% or $11.6 miilion from $16.6 million for the six months ended December 31, 1998 to $5.0
million for the six months ended December 31, 1999. The decrease is directly related to the reduced gross margins, higher selling,
general and administrative expenses, and increased research and development activities described above.

Net interest income decreased 47.8% or $1.1 million from $2.3 million for the six months ended December 31, 1998 to $1.2
million for the six months ended December 31, 1999. The decrease is due to declining cash and short term investment balances.
Interest income consisted primarily of returns on short-and long-term investments net of interest expense incurred related to short term
bank borrowings.

Foreign currency losses resulted from operating in volatile markets, principally Brazil. During the six months ended December 31,
1999, we recorded a $0.4 million loss compared to $1.0 million for the six months ended December 31, 1998. We entered into
hedging strategies to mitigate the impact of foreign currency fluctuations, which resulted in the significant decrease in the loss for the
six months ended December 31, 1999.

The provisions for federal, state and foreign income taxes were $0.4 million and $5.6 million for the six-month periods ended
December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Our effective tax rate was approximately 7% and 31% for the six months ended December
31, 1999 and 1998, respectively. Our tax rate is typically lower than the US federal statutory rate due to:

* sales in foreign jurisdictions with lower rates (particularly in the six months ended December 31, 1999); = -
+ research and experimentation credits in Australia and the US; and
» the use of foreign sales corporations offering lower taxes on certain international sales.

Comparison of Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 1999 and 1998

Net revenue in fiscal 1999 increased $4.3 million or 1.7% primarily due to the acquisition of Horizon in fiscal 1999. The increase
in revenue reflected growth in the United States and Europe where we have been establishing new sales and service operations.
i Revenues in Asia and Latin America slowed due to regional economic conditions and currency devaluation. Net revenues from
service activities, principally derived from POS support services, during the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998 amounted to
less than 10% of total net revenue.

Gross profit as a percentage of net revenue decreased from 49.3% in fiscal 1998 to 45.8% in fiscal 1999. This decrease was due in
part to the impact of Horizon which is a national distributor of equipment for Hypercom and other POS manufacturers. Horizon
historically operates at margins sxgmﬁcantly less (12%-15%) than our historical gross profit margin. In addition, gross profit also
declined due to reduced selling prices as a result of increased worldwide competitive factors as well as declining economic conditions

| in some foreign countries.

Selling, general and administrative expense increased $2.3 million, or 3.1%, to $74.8 million in fiscal 1999 as we continued to

‘ invest in our worldwide operations, including expanding its headquarters in Phoenix, Arizona, adding a new distribution center,
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opening new international sales and support offices, and expanding and improving our worldwide administrative, financial, and
information technology-related infrastructure.

Research and development expense increased $6.7 million, or 28.7%, to $30.2 million in fiscal 1999. The increase was primarily

! for POS product development as we prepared to introduce in fiscal 1999 our new ICE terminal products, FastPOS 9600 bps terminals,
! and ePicPortz client/server software. Beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 1999, we began capitalizing costs in relation to the
| development of specific software enhancements related to its ePicPortz software products. The amount capitalized in fiscal 1999 was
| approximately $2.0 million. :

Non-cash compensation was previously charged in connection with a grant of stock options which included a stock repurchase

" arrangement. We recorded a non-cash compensation charge of $11.0 million in the first half of fiscal 1998 and incurred no further
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charge during the year as the repurchase arrangement terminated upon the closing of our initial public offering in November 1997.(
There was no non-cash compensation charge for fiscal 1999,

Income from operations decreased $5.1 million, or 25.9%, to $14.7 million in fiscal 1999 due primarily to reduced gross margins,
higher selling, general and administrative expenses and higher research and development expense.

Net interest income for fiscal 1999 increased $2.8 million to $4.6 million from $1.8 million in fiscal 1998. Interest mcome[
consisted primarily of returns on short and long-term investments net of interest expense incurred related to short term bank{
borrowings.

Foreign currency losses resulted from operating in volatile markets, principally Brazil. During fiscal 1999 we recorded a $4.4
million loss related to the net monetary asset exposure in Brazil. We have entered into hedging strategies to mitigate the impact of]
future foreign currency fluctuations.

The provisions for federal, state, and foreign income taxes were $3.4 million and $5.9 million for the fiscal years ended June 30,
1999 and 1998, respectively. Our effective rate of tax was 27% and 30% for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1999 and 1998. Our ta
rate is typically lower than the US federal statutory rate due to:

. research and experimentation credits in Australia and the US;

»  sales in foreign jurisdictions with lower tax rates; and

+  the use of foreign sales corporations offering lower taxes on certain international sales.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have historically financed our operations primarily through cash generated from operations and from borrowings under a line
of credit. During 2001 and 2000, we also used securitization conduits to finance lease receivables generated by our Golden Eagle
Leasing subsidiary as well as borrowings under notes payable to fund working capital requirements and reduce our bank debt. In
August, 2001, we refinanced our primary credit facilities. See "Financing Events During 2001" below. In March 2002, we paid off a
significant portion of our new credit facilities with proceeds from an equity offering (See “Note 20” to the consolidated ﬁnancxal
statements). There are no off balance sheet financings at December 31, 2001.

Year Ended December 31, 2001

As a result of our efforts to cut costs and increase cash flows, cash flows from operations improved from a negative $25.2 million
for the year ended December 31, 2000, to a positive cash flow from operations of $17.4 million for the year ended December 31,
2001. This improvement was primarily a result of cuts in research and development expenses as previously described, and reductions
in accounts receivable balances. Accounts receivable decreased $5.3 million in 2001, net of foreign currency translation, compared to
a net increase of $24.4 million, for the year 2000, as a result of our emphasis on lowering accounts receivable balances through strictér
enforcement of credit policies and increased collection efforts. Payment terms on our terminal product sales generally range from nét
30 to 60 days depending on the circumstances of each order. We used $8.1 million in investing activities. Long-term debt decreased
$32.5 million to $67.9 million at December 31, 2001, from $100.4 million at December 31, 2000. Working capital and cash was
$133.8 million and $13.4 million, respectively at December 31, 2001, compared to $75.2 and $13.0 million, respectively at December
31, 2000. ‘

Capital expenditures totaled $3.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2001, compared to $13.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2000. Depreciation expense was $9.6 million and $8.3 million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000,
respectively. The anticipated capital expenditures for 2002 are approximately $2.5 million. These expenditures will be pnmanly for
systems upgrades and office equipment. :

We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents together with funds generated from operations and availability under our
credit. facility should be sufficient to meet our operating requirements. In addition, and as further discussed hereafter, we have
undertaken numerous financing measures to address our short and long-term liquidity and capital needs.
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Financing Events During 2001 and Thereafter

On May 24, 2001, our leasing subsidiary, Golden Eagle Leasing, Inc. securitized approximately $45 million of its equipment
leases, based on total discounted contract balances on the closing date. The securitization was accomplished through the sale by
Golden Eagle Leasing of these receivables on a non-recourse basis to Golden Eagle Funding Corp., a newly formed bankruptcy
remote company. Golden Eagle Funding issued notes in the principal amount of approximately $32 million, which are secured by the
lease receivables. The interest rate on the notes is 8.58% per annum and the notes mature on November 16, 2006.

The securitization agreements provide for additional credit enhancements, including excess collateralization and the funding of a
reserve account. In addition, the covenants under these agreements, among other things, require Golden Eagle Leasing to maintain
certain financial ratios and to maintain credit facilities in an aggregate amount of at least $30 million after March 31, 2002.

In June 2001, we entered into certain interim financing arrangements pending the completion of the refinancing of our credit
facilities. On June 4, 2001, we entered into a Loan Agreement with a group of eight investors pursuant to which we borrowed an
aggregate of $3.4 million. The loans bore interest at 7.5% per annum and had a maturity date of September 5, 2001. The promissory
notes evidencing the loans were convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of $3.16 per share. On July 30,
2001, all of the notes plus accrued interest were converted into an aggregate of 1,088,342 shares of common stock. In connection with
this borrowing, we issued to the lenders Series B Warrants to purchase up to 460,000 shares of our common stock in the aggregate at
an exercise price of $3.16 per share. In addition, on July 30, we entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement with several investors,
including four of the Series B Warrant holders, under which they purchased an aggregate of 1,745,201 shares of our common stock at
a price of $4.2975 per share.

On June 6, 2001, we barrowed $15 million from Michelle Investments LLC pursuant to a Loan and Security Agreement. The loan
! bore interest at 7.5% per annum and had a maturity date of June 6, 2002. In connection with the Michelle Investments loan, we
granted to Michelle Investments a Series A Warrant to purchase up to 1.0 million shares of our common stock, subject to certain
adjustments, at an exercise price of $3.19 per share. On July 31, 2001, we and Michelle Investments entered into a Stock Purchase
Agreement under which Michelle Investments purchased 2,475,248 shares of our common stock at a price of $3.03 per share.
Michelle Investments paid for the stock through a $7.5 million reduction of the outstanding balance under this loan. Concurrently with
the issuance of these shares to Michelle Investments, we repaid the remaining balance of the loan out of funds available under our new
credit facility.

As a condition to obtaining forbearance from our principal lenders under our pre-existing loan agreements, and to secure the $3.4
- million in loans above, George Wallner, our Chairman and Chief Strategist and our principal stockholder, agreed to loan us $3.1
million, of which $1.5 million was loaned to us in December 2000, and to subordinate these loans to our other indebtedness, including
our new lending facility. This loan was paid off in full in March 2002 in conjunction with our private placement of common stock
completed on March 22, 2002.

r In August 2001, we replaced our principal credit facility with a new $45 million senior secured credit facility comprised of a $25
| million revolving credit facility and two separate term loans for $5 million and $15 million. The two separate term loans were paid off
lﬁ and the revolving credit facility paid down to zero in March 2002 in conjunction with our private placement of common stock
| completed on March 22, 2002. The maximum borrowing capacity under this facility is based on inventory and receivables levels and
| other factors. The borrowers under the new credit facility are Hypercom Corporation and seven of our domestic subsidiaries, and the
‘1‘ guarantors consist of Golden Eagle Leasing and two of our foreign subsidiaries.
}‘ The revolving credit facility, which has a term of three years, bears interest at the greater of 8% per annum or the prime rate plus
1%, and includes a $6 million letter of credit sub-facility. At closing, $12 million was available under the revolving credit facility,
. after repayment of existing debt and payment of closing costs. The $5 million term loan bore interest at the greater of 10% per annum
| or the prime rate plus 3%. The $15 million term loan bore interest at the greater of 14% per annum or the prime rate plus 7%. At
i December 31, 2001, the prime rate used to compute interest rates under the new credit facility was 4.75%.

1 Under the covenant provisions of the new credit facility, we have agreed to, among other things, maintain certain specified
 financial ratios and consolidated net worth, not make certain distributions with respect to our capital stock (including cash dividends),
. not make certain investments and not allow our subsidiaries to incur certain types and amounts of debt. In particular, subject to special
exceptions, these covenants prohibit us from:

25




+ incurring any additional indebtedness;

* incurring or permitting to exist any additional liens on our assets;

* engaging in a change of control transaction or other fundamental change, such as a merger, recapitalization or liquidation;

+ disposing of our assets, including equipment and inventory, outside the ordinary course of business;

» prepaying or modifying the terms of our existing indebtedness, except in connection with a permitted financing;

+ redeeming, repurchasing or paying dividends or other distributions on our capital stock;

. engaging in certain transactions with our affiliates;

« failing to maintain specified levels of EBITDA and tangible net worth and ratios of senior debt and total debt to EBIDTA; and

+ issuing or selling any prohibited preferred stock.

As partial consideration for the senior secured credit facility, we issued to Ableco Holding LLC, an affiliate of one of our lenders
a Series C Warrant to purchase up to 375,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share. The Series
Warrant is exercisable over a period of five years. The Series C Warrant may be exercised, at the same exercise price, for an additiona
350,000 shares at every six-month anniversary of the issue date of the term loans while there remain amounts outstanding under the
term loans. We also paid to Roth Capital Partners LLC, which assisted us in obtaining our new credit facility, a fee of $2.5 million and
issued to it a Series D Warrant to purchase up to 312,477 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $5.33 per share. Th

Series D Warrant is exercisable over a period of five years. This fee and the value of the Series C and D Warrants will be amortized a?
part of the loan costs, and effectively increase our interest rate. |

1
|

On March 22, 2002, the Company completed a private placement of 7,870,000 shares of its common stock, raising $39.4 million in
gross proceeds before deducting commissions and expenses of the offering of approximately $3.2 million. The shares were not
registered with the SEC in reliance upon the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, as well as similar exemptions contained in the securities laws, rules and regulations of the applicable states. The shares may
not be re-offered or resold in the United States absent registration, or an applicable exemption from registration requirements of the
1933 Act. The Company has used the proceeds to pay off and cancel its term loans from the senior credit facility, pay down to zero
the balance on the revolving line of credit from the senior credit facility, payoff the balance due to the director and stockholder
Remaining proceeds will be used for general corporate purposes. '

Backlog

As of December 31, 2001, we had backlog of $113.4 million, compared to $108.0 million at the same date in 2000. Backlog at
December 31, 1999 was $89 million.

We include in our backlog all revenue specified in signed contracts and purchase orders to the extent that we contemplafe
recognition of the related revenue within one year. There can be no assurance that the contracts included in backlog will actually
generate the specified revenues or that the actual revenues will be generated within such one-year period.

New and Proposed Pronouncements

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued a Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, (FAS
133), "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." This statement provides a comprehensive and consistent |
standard for the recognition and measurement of derivatives and hedging activities. In July 1999, the Financial Accounting Standards
Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 137 (FAS 137), which deferred the effective date of FAS 133 for one
year. In June 2000, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 138, (FAS
138), "Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities-an amendment to FASB Statement No. 133."
This statement amended certain provisions of FAS 133. Accordingly, we have adopted FAS 133, as amended by FAS 138, effective
the first quarter of fiscal 2001. This statement did not have a material effect on our financial statements.
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In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 141,
Business Combinations, and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001. Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer be amortized but will be
subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with the statements. Other intangible assets will continue to be amortized over their
useful lives. We are currently reviewing the impact of SFAS Nos. 141 and 142 and will be performing a fair-value analysis at a later
date in connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (FAS 144), which addresses financial accounting and reporting for
the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets
and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, Reporting the
Results of Operations for a disposal of a segment of a business. FAS 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2001, with earlier application encouraged. We are currently reviewing the impact of FAS 144 and have not determined the effect, if
any, the adoption of FAS 144 will have on our financial position and results of operations.

Item 7a. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk ..

We are exposed to financial market risks, including changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates in connection
with our foreign operations and markets. Nevertheless, the fair value of our investment portfolio or related income would not be
significantly impacted by either a 100 basis point increase or decrease in interest rates, due primarily to the short-term nature of the
major portion of our investment portfolio.

A substantial portion of our revenue and capital spending is transacted in U.S. dollars. However, we do at times enter into these
transactions in other currencies, such as the Hong Kong dollar, Australian dollar, Brazilian Real and other Asian and European
currencies. We were unable to continue our hedging strategies during the year ended December 31, 2001 as a result of being in defauit
with our lenders and limitations on the amount of available credit under our new credit facility. We have established revenue and
balance sheet hedging programs to protect against reductions in value and cash flow volatility caused by changes in foreign exchange
rates. Such programs are intended to reduce market risks, but do not always eliminate the impact of foreign currency exchange
volatility. We incurred translation losses of $2.4 million during the year ended December 31, 2001, principally from the unfavorable
translation of our net foreign investments in Brazil and the United Kingdom.

We do not purchase or hold any such derivative financial instruments for the purpose of speculation or arbitrage. See "Risk Factors
— If we cannot manage additional challenges presented by our international operations, our revenues and profitability may suffer”
elsewhere in this Report.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The financial statements and supplementary. data required by Regulation S-X are included in Part IV, Item 14 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreement with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Effective as of February 4, 2000, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP was dismissed as our independent accountants. On February 9,
2000, we engaged Ernst & Young LLP as our independent accountants to audit our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal six
months ended December 31, 1999. The decision to change independent accountants was approved by the Audit Committee of our
Board of Directors. At our 2000 annual meeting, Ernst & Young was approved to audit our consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2000.

PricewaterhouseCoopers' report on our consolidated financial statements as of June 30, 1999 did not contain an adverse opinion or
a disclaimer of opinion, nor was it qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope, or accounting principles.

During our fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, and for the period from July 1, 1999 through February 4, 2000, there were no
disagreements between us and PricewaterhouseCoopers on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statements
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreement, if not resoived to the satisfaction of PricewaterhouseCoopers, would
have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its report. In addition, during our fiscal
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year ended June 30, 1999, and for the period from July 1, 1999 through February 4, 2000, we did not experience any kind of event
listed in paragraphs (a)(1)(v)(A) through (D) of Regulation S-K, Item 304.

In connection with our engagement of Ermnst & Young as our independent accountants for the fiscal six months ended Decembe
31, 1999, neither we nor any person acting on our behalf, consulted Ernst & Young regarding (i) the application of accounting
principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on o
consolidated financial statements; or (ii) any matter that was either the subject of a disagreement (as defined in paragraph (a)(1) (iv) o
Regulation S-K, Item 304, and the related instructions) or a reportable event as described in paragraph (a)(1) (v) of Regulation S-K,
Item 304.




PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

(a) Identification of Directors: The information set forth in our 2002 Proxy Statement under the caption "Board of Directors"” is
incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Identification of Executive Officers: See Part I of this Report.

(¢) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934: The information set forth in our 2002 Proxy Statement
under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information set forth in our 2002 Proxy Statement under the caption "Executive Compensation” is incorporated herein by -

reference. The sections captioned "Report of the Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation” and "Stock Price
Performance Graph" in the Company's 2002 Proxy Statement are not incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The information set forth in our 2002 Proxy Statement under the caption "Security Ownership of Principa! Stockholders and
Management" is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information set forth in our 2002 Proxy Statement under the caption "Certain Transactions and Relationships" is incorporated
herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 14. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
a. The following documents are filed as part of this Report:

(1)  Audited Consolidated Financiai Statements

Report of Independent AUItOIS .......c.cceeveverrrernrernerenriveeeernieesennnennesees 32
Report of Independent ACCOUNLANLS .........ccceverrnreneriiierecciiviirercrsseens 33
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2001 and 2000............. 34

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December
31, 2001 and 2000, the six-month period ended December 31, 1999
and the year ended June 30, 1999 ......cccnrverirernrrnncrnnsenecensiosnns 35
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six-month period ended
December 31, 1999 and the year ended June 30, 1999..........cceuvnun. 36
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six-month period ended

December 31, 1999 and the year ended June 30, 1999...........ccovvneneee 37
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements ............cococevesurimvrsnensirnns 39
Report of Independent Accountants on Financial Statement
SCHEUIE ..ottt rcreseerere et sarers e sssss st eses s sassbene 60
(2)  Financial Statement Schedule
Schedule II Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.........ccereevrenrereeirenennns 61

(All other financial statement schedules have been omitted since they
are not required, not applicable, or the information is otherwise
included in the financial statements)

b. We filed no Form 8-K Reports during the last quarter of 2001.

c.  The Exhibit Index and required Exhibits are included following the Financial Statement Schedule.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this
Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Hypercom Corporation
By /s/ CHRISTOPHER S. ALEXANDER

Christopher S. Alexander
President and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 29, 2002

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this Report has been signed below by the following persons
on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated on March 29, 2002. ..

Signature Title

(1) Principal Executive, Financial and Accounting Officers

{s/ CHRISTOPHER S. Al EXANDER President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
Christopher S. Alexander

/s/ JONATHON E. KILLMER Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer
Jonathon E. Killmer and Chief Administrative Officer

(2) Directors

/s/ GEORGE WALLNER * Chairman of the Board

George Waliner

/s/ ALBERT IRATO * Vice Chairman of the Board

Albert irato

/s/ WILLIAM KEIPER * Director

William Keiper

s/ JOCK PATTON * Director

Jock Patton

/s/ JANE EVANS * Director

Jane Evans

{s! DANIEL D. DIETHEIM * Director

Daniel D. Diethelm

Jonathon E. Killmer, by signing his name hereto, does sign and execute this Annual Report on Form 10-K on behalf of such of the
above named officers and directors of the registrant on this 29" day of March, 2002, pursuant to the power of attorney executed by
each of such officers and directors filed as Exhibit 24.1 to this Report.

*By:
y /s/ JONATHON E. KILLMER

Jonathon E. Killmer
Attorney-in-Fact
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hypercom Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31,
2001 and 2000, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for the six-month period ended December 31, 1999, Our audits also included the financial statement
schedule listed in item 14(a)(2). These financial statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards require]
that we pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the ﬁnancia%

statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well a
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial positio:
of Hypercom Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2001 and 2000, and the consolidated results of their operations an
their cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for the six month period ended December 31, 1999, i
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related financial statemen
schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects th

information set forth therein.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP \

Phoenix, Arizona
February 13, 2002, except for Note 20
as to which the date is March 22, 2002
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and
Stockholders of Hypercom Corporation

In our opinion, the consolidated statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and of cash flows for the year ended June 30, 1999
present fairly, in all material respects, the results of operations and cash flows of Hypercom Corporation and its subsidiaries for the
year ended June 30, 1999, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. We
have not audited the consolidated financial statements of Hypercom Corporation for any period subsequent to June 30, 1999.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
July 20, 1999

33




HYPERCOM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2001 2000
(amounts in thousands, except sharedata)
ASSETS ‘
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents.........c.ccovrcnnieneereeerinesennnieennne $ 13,402 $ 13,008
Restricted Cash.........ccccveeviriirerieees et esrsenessnerereneas 6,367 —
Marketable securities, at market...........cooervreeiviererenererieiennes — 2,110
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $4,029 and $3,655.......ccccovrmnminrenreniorninrennnes 70,860 79,010
Current portion of net investment in direct financing
LEASES ..vveveieierririricereienreressr e rresresasssresrnsrtersssbeentersestesasbes 16,242 20,023
INVENtOTIES, DEL....c.iivrevcrreereeecrtenrrrrenseesuernesssesessssasesessonsns 62,411 70,358
Deferred INCOME taAXES.....ccovviverievereererriereiseeeveessessreoseennons 16,090 12,946
Prepaid taXes.......cvvveeeieensinrereneisnnnnesesseseninsnssereseresneressenes 762 3,035
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.........coceveereerecrarene 26,568 19,059
Total CUITEIT ASSELS ..ovvevrevreiicrnreeniiereeoresstesesessrersstesssessossienes 212,702 219,549
Property, plant and equipment, net...........c.cccevervrecncrrrerenenns 37,964 42,164
Investment in equity affiliate..........ccocvnnrnrncrncinccsaseiennnsaesane — —_
Long-term marketable securities, at market ..........c.coceereenenene 155 820
Long-term portion of net investment in direct
financing 1ases .....c.ocvevereererviierrienieseeserantesisissesssesinsenees 24,761 : 42,102
Deferred iNCOME taXES.....vvvvveecrivireeirerserereessessosiesssnsesssensesns 10,003 9,024
Goodwill, net of amortization of $3,293 and $1,649........ 21,706 22,608
Intangible assets, net of amortization of $9,873 and $5,419 . 13,597 15,957
OMHET ASSBIS....coviiiiriceiertrne e sbesessne e ssssesaseses 16.806 17.013
TOtA] ASSELS .cvvererririierrierrrentere e enreie e tsernesaesasnssbenessnssesasnone $ 337,694 3 369,237
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable.........coeieieiiiniienn e $ 31,761 $ 32,531
Accrued Habilities.......ccocvivieinnciiiniiriiereeresiesessiessessesessenssenes 22,744 22,137
Deferred TEVENUE .....c.vcevirere e cere e srestess e essesvsnsensoses 2,180 2,390
Income taxes payable .......ccovvivcrcerniniiirec s 1,495 3,237
Current portion of long-term debt........ccoccveirmneerierinieneccnnne 20.716 84,036
Total current liabilities ........cceeevvevervieiccvirrenrrerereiesenverisresesanee 78,896 144,331
Long-term debt.......cooveiiicieeciercecr e ees e reens 47,172 16,355
Other non-current Habilities.........ccovcvirvenervnnrnnnnesiensecroreninnens 257 404
Total Habilities....o.vcviriereererinreieennnneeinreeersrnessnssesssssessessaeneene 126,325 161,090
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock, $.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares
authorized; 39,795,554 and 34,299,999, shares outstanding
at December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively ...........eeccuun. 19 14
Additional paid-in capital............ccererrceecrenenrerneninirerereecssnes 175,628 152,658
Receivables from stockholders..........coccceeneeveeiienerccrcrnnneene (1,498) (1,498)
Retained €armings .....c.ccceveevrcereerenennnienerrenresesnesecsesaesesansene __ 39722 __ 59923
213,871 211,097
Treasury stock, 230,088 and 276,500 shares (at cost) at
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively......c.ccvceunee __(2.502) _(2.950)
Total stockholders' equity.........ccceeevreresrimrercimeensererseennsensns 211.369 _208.147
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .......c.coeecevereriririururnne

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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" HYPERCOM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Six Months
Year Ended Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, June 30,
2001 2000 1999 1999
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

NEt TEVENUE ..veererirrieeieieieriereeenreresoneresesrenesanas $ 291,704 § 327,560 $ 149,282 § 261,515
Costs and expenses:

Costs Of TEVENUEL ...c.covereii oo, 193,573 212,156 81,177 141,831

Research and development.........cocevivininene. 29,107 41,039 19,637 30,249

Selling, general and administrative ............... 79,971 07.408 43,505 74,772
Total costs and eXpenses ........ccovveririsieisrcnianns 302,651 350,603 144,319 246,852
Income (loss) from operations.........c.overineenenns (10,947) (23,043) 4,963 14,663
Interest iNCOME ...vueieiiinriireccieeesreeereeeereresaresones 569 1,919 2,355 5,888
Interest eXpense .......covveecnieininiiiniennenrnene (9,667) (5,470) (1,196) (941)
Other income and (eXPense).......c.ccuvivrmrecrsereiens (2,402) 718 41 (287)
Foreign currency 108 ......oceeiirninnnnniiiciienens (2,438) (1,867) (392) (6,757)
Loss from investment in equity affiliate............ — (9.855) — —
Income (loss) before income taxes................... (24,885) (37,598) 5,771 12,566
(Provision) benefit for income taxes .......c..c...ou. 4977 6,648 (386) (3.393)
Net income (1055) ..veevererurreciererevereccrnererurernseeses $ (19908) $(30950) § 538 § 9,173
Net income (loss) per share:

Basic earnings (loss) per share .......c.ccoevvennneee. $ (0354 $_(091) $__ 016 $__ 028

Weighted average basic common shares......... 34,184 33,232 33,148

Diluted earnings (loss) per share .....c.o.coevvueee. § 016 §__ 027

Weighted average diluted common shares...... - 36,643 34,184 34,446 __ 34428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Additional  Receivables Total
Common Stock Paid-in from Retained Treasury  Stockholders'
Shares Balance Capital Stockholders Earnings Stock Equity
(amounts in thousands, except share data)

Balance as of June 30, 1998 ....... 33,548,625 $13 $145,601 $(1,498) $76,315 % — $220,431
Purchase of treasury stock ........ (587,700) — — — — (5,396) (5,396)
Issuance of common stock........ 45,541 — 410 — — — 410
Issuance of treasury stock 189,301 — — —_ — 1,369 1,369
Exercise of options .........cecuue. 3,750 - — — — 36 36
Net iNCome ....covvevvveninnee — — — — 9,173 — 9,173

Balance as of June 30, 1999 ....... 33,199,517 13 146,011 (1,498) 85,488 (3,991) 226,023
Issuance of treasury stock 34,508 — 24 — — 297 321
Exercise of options .......... 500 — S —_ —_ —_ S
Net INCOME «.c.ecvenreneecereriineens — — — — 5,385 — 5,385

Balance as of December 31,

1999 33,234,525 13 146,040 {1,498) 90,873 (3,6594) 231,734
Issuance of common stock........ 432,871 — 4,000 — — — 4,000
[ssuance of treasury stock......... 83,641 — 22 — — 744 766
Exercise of options 548,962 | 2,596 — — — 2,597
NEt (10SS) .oveverrrrrereermmnriarereses — — — — (30,950) — (30,930)

Balance as of December 31,
2000....ccreeremnnenrieenesnesereenen: 34,299,999 14 152,658 (1,498) 59,923 (2,950) 208,147
Issuance of common stock........ 5,449,143 5 22,992 —_ — — 22,997 -
Issuance of treasury stock......... 46,412 — (22) — (293) 448 133
NEt (1088) srvceeerrinersreanmrnrsrersrrens — — — — (19.908) — (19,908)

Balance as of December 31,

2001 ...t QM 19 lzé §2§ (1 gggl 32 zzg (g égzl gl 1 égg

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net inCome (10SS) ...c.coenvevrrrcinrirreeressierenerereinssrersrnesens

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash (used in) provided by operating activities:

Amortization of discount on notes payable .........cvueuue.
Amortization of beneficial notes payable conversion
fEATUTE ...ttt
Depreciation and amortization.........cccvereericrcrcrererene
Bad debt expense (credit) .......cocovvevercrnvnrerconeennenenee
Deferred components of direct-financing leases...........
Provision for losses on direct-financing leases.............

Provision (credit) for excess and obsolete

INVERIOIY c1oveureeirirenncreririeeneernsesesvssasnsesanss seeseoss e
Equity loss in affiliates ..........cccocvvercicivivnecesvenecverecnnnns
Foreign currency 108s.......cocovvvieininnrerinicrneniieionnsnniens
Deferred INCOME taXES ....eoeecrerirririrerceienrnesrvsiersrereenene

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts Teceivable........ccovcverecennicniee e
[NVENLOTIES ..ot eeens
Prepaid taxes........ccevveverenrerirniie et
Prepaid expenses and other current assets..........coeeeun.
Other 5SE1S.....ovirimeerirircreritii e erseereneteneeens

Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable........coveiicnineninreeee e
Accrued lHabilities....ccoverceicricrrionnecieineenieee e sreesiennens
Deferred reVenue .......ccccvvrriiicsnenieenee e reeeeteenenens
Income taxes payable.......ccooiiviniiiinencniinni e
Other Habilities .......coereeeeeirrciecccirrnecere e

Net cash (used in) provided by operating

BOHIVIHBS ..evvtcereeiereiitecerirertesreesresssessseerasenessrerssnsennes

Cash flows from investing activities:
Advances to and investment in equity affiliate and

related PArties. .....ccvieiiereererrecre e ecreeervre e s esarrene
Repayments from related parties ...........vccevcrcmseriesrenenns
Notes receivable ....vverviiererccirieeiiiinres e e e entineneens

Funding of direct-financing leases.........cccervverrivennnens
Increase in restricted Cash......coevcviererirereenscveesrennnneens

Acquisition of controlling interest in

subsidiaries, net of cash acquired ..........ccceceemcreeninee.
Acquisition of Other @SSets.......ccceenrerercrrrenrerseeresrenssvenens

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

EQUIPITIENE ....veveierereneraerenressanresesansnesessressossneseressannensess
Purchase of property, plant and equipment............c.ccon.
Purchase of marketable securities.......c..cccevcrermrernrerenns
Proceeds from maturity of marketable securities..........

Net cash used in investing activities.........cooeveriueninas

Year Ended Six Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, June 30,
2001 2000 1999 1999
(amounts in thousands)
$ (19,908) $ (30,950) $ 5,385 $ 9,173
2,967 — — —
667 —_ — —_
15,745 13,239 4,550 6,566
1,780 2,732 (24) 1,386
(621) (2,285) — —
18,075 11,681 — —
3,794 3,170 (281) 2,925
— 9,855 — —
2,438 1,867 392 6,757
(4,123) (7,385) (3,009) (1,446)
225 100 121 —
5,316 (24,387) (6,694) (9,837)
2,123 (1,826) (15,134) 4,940
2,273 2,408 (283) (1,932)
(7,510) (1,230) (3,537) (4,567)
(2,505) (6,050) (567) (6,767)
(1,822) 3,291 10,065 (6,647)
607 1,886 4,781 (2,421)
(210) (2,380) 584 3,216
(1,743) 895 (54) 25
(146) 142 — —_
17,422 (25,227) (3,705) 1,371
— (2,005) (5,000) —
—_— — —_ 294
— — (3,900)
997 1,269 563 723
12,587 10,019 — —
(18,061) (42,310) — —
(2,726) — — —
— (24,134) (3,600) (9,279)
(912) (2,710) (1,510) (2,068)
399 91 149 438
(3,152) (13,847) (8,969) (12,768)
— (935) (18,567) (247,399)
2,775 34,782 29,865 252,000
(8,093) (39,780) (7,069) (21,959)
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Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds of bank notes payable and other debt

INSTUMENLS cveevererviriiererersnessessesssasssrernarareresesesssssesesssans 153,372 216,480 35,238 72,837
Repayment of bank notes payable and other debt
INSITUIMENES «..ooveverrriiseercsesesersnsrersesessssesesessmoesansssssenes (177,483) (167,234) (35,346) (66,465)
Proceeds from sale of lease receivables.........cccoeeenennene. 7,977 — — —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock......cccevennene 7,803 3,363 326 746
Purchase of treasury stock .......o.covevereeverncrniniinisnnnennns — — — (5.396)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities..... (8,331) 52,609 218 1,722
Effect of exchange rate changes ............ocoveveereiererererennnns (604) (687) (78) (66)
Net increase (decrease) in cash......ccoeereeivieniineenienseens 394 (13,085) (10,634) (18,932)
Cash and equivalents, beginning of period.......ccrcecnenen. 13.008 26,093 36.727 55,659
Cash and equivalents, end of period..........cccoeeevnieivrevennnne $ 13402 § 13,008 $ 26,093 $ 36727

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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HYPERCOM CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2001

|
[ 1. Description of Business

) Hypercom Corporation (with its subsidiaries, the "Company") is a single-source global provider of end-to-end electronic payment
| solutions, including card payment terminals, peripherals, network products, software and e-commerce payment solutions that add
\ value at the point-ofsale (POS) for consumers, merchants and acquirers, as well as providing direct financing lease funding for POS
| equipment.

|

The U.S. operations, headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona, primarily consist of product development, manufacturing, sales and
1 marketing, distribution and customer service. The European operations consist of product distribution through the Company's sales
3‘ and support offices located in the United Kingdom, Russia, Sweden, and Hungary. Latin American operations engage primarily in
‘/ product distribution through the Company's subsidiaries in Brazil, Mexico, Chile, Argentina and Venezuela; however, certain
| manufacturing operations exist in Brazil. The Company's primary manufacturing is performed in China and is coordinated by the
| Hong Kong office. The Asia/Pacific operations are also engaged in product development and product distribution through the
Company's subsidiaries or business units in Singapore, Hong Kong and Australia.

2, Significant Accounting Policies
* Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements are comprised of the accounts of Hypercom Corporation and all subsidiaries in which a
controlling interest is held. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Basis of Presentation

Effective July 1, 1999, the Company changed its fiscal year from a twelve month period ending June 30, to a twelve month period
ending December 31. The consolidated financial statements include presentation of the transition period beginning July 1, 1999 and
ending on December 31, 1999.

The following table presents certain financial information for the twelve months ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, and
the six months ended December 31, 1999 and 1998, respectively (dollars in thousands, except per share amounts):

Twelve Months Ended Six Months Ended
__December 31, December 31,
2001 2000 1999 1999 1998

(unaudited) (unaudited)

REVENUES ..ot crceerceeeteseereranns $ 291,704 $ 327,560 § 274,220 $ 149,282 § 136,577

\ GIoss Profit ecceecveeererersnccsercrmrninesens $ 98,131 §$ 115404 $ 120,096 $ 68,105 3 67,693
\“ Income (loss) before income tax........... $ (24,885) §$ (37.598) § 425 & 5771 % 17912
{ {Provision) benefit for income taxes..... $ 4977 $ 6648 $§ 1774 § (38) $ (5,553)
‘; Net income (10S8) ..overvrierirecervrerererens % (19,908) $ (30,950) $ 2,199 $ 5385 §& 12,359
3 Diluted earnings (loss) per share........... $§ (054 $ (091) § 006 $ 0.16 § 0.36
Weighted average common shares........ 36,643 34,184 34,436 34,446 34,549

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

39




Foreign Currency ,
The foreign subsidiaries and divisions use the U.S. dollar as the functional currency. Their local currency financial statements are{
re-measured as follows: monetary assets and liabilities at year-end exchange rates, and inventories, property and non-monetary assets|
and liabilities at historical rates. During the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six month period ended December 31, 1999
and the year ended June 30, 1999, the Company recorded net gains (losses) on re-measurement of approximately ($2,040,000),!
(82,785,000), $81,000, and ($5,275,000), respectively. For the same periods, the Company recorded net gains (losses) on transactions
denominated in foreign currencies of approximately ($398,000), $918,000, ($473,000), and ($1,482,000), respectively. These,
amounts are included in the results of operations. \‘
|

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all investment instruments with a remaining maturity of three months or less when purchased, to be cash
equivalents.

Restricted Cash

In connection with the securitization of direct finance leases (see Note 9), the Company’s Equipment Leasing segment, Golden\n
Eagle Leasing, was required to establish restricted cash collection, collateral and reserve accounts. The Company initially funded the
restricted cash accounts with $3.6 million from the proceeds of the securitization. The accounts are principally used for the coliection!
of monthly equipment lease payments, remittance of funds to service the related debt, and to maintain certain credit enhancement and
'liquidity levels. ‘{

Marketable Securities

Management determines the appropriate classification of its investments in tradable debt and equity securities at the time of
purchase. Securities for which the Company does not have the intent or ability to hold to maturity are classified as available for sale
and are carried at fair value, with the unrealized holding gain and losses, net of tax, reported in a separate component of stockholders’
equity, if material. Cost is determined based on specific identification. Securities classified as available for sale include both secunues
due within one year and securities with maturity dates beyond one year. Securities with a maturity date within one year are classxﬁed
as Marketable Securities as a part of Current Assets. Securities with a maturity date beyond one year are classified as Long-Term

Marketable Securities. i

t

Fair Value of Financial Instruments :
The Company values financial instruments as required by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 107, Dtsclosurel'
about Fair Value of Financial Instruments ("SFAS No. 107"). The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents and bank notes
payable approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those instruments. The fair value of marketable securities and long-term:
marketable securities is determined based on quoted market prices. The fair value of direct financing leases and long-term obligations
is estimated by discounting the future cash flows required under the terms of each respective lease or debt agreement by current
market rates for the same or similar issues of leases or debt with similar remaining maturities. The fair value of financial hedge‘t
instruments are based on quotes from brokers using market prices for those or similar instruments. The Corporation does not acquire,
hold, or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Derivative financial instruments are used to manage foreign
exchange and interest rate risks that arise out of the Company's core business activities. The Company's only significant foreigh
currency contracts are a three month and a six month forward contract for the Brazilian Real which matured on January 14, 2001. The
U.S. dollar amount of the contracts was approximately $13.8 million. At December 31, 2000, the total receivable recorded under all

such contracts was approximately $309,000.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost or market. Standard costs approximate first-in, first-out ("FIFO") costsj.
Reserves for estimated excess and/or obsolete inventory are established on a part level basis and netted against the related inventory

item.

|
|
|
{
|
|
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Investment in Equity Affiliate

The Company uses the equity method of accounting for restricted share investments held in entities for which it holds greater than
20% equity interest yet does not have financial control as defined by SFAS No. 94. Under this method the Company will record its
proportionate share of the operating results of the investee.

At December 31, 1999, the first such investment was made by contribution of certain assets and intellectual property with a net
book value of $776,000 and through an advance of funds totaling $5,000,000 to Cirilium Corporation. In addition, in the quarter ended
June 2000, the Company contributed certain foreign assets with a net book value of $229,000 to Cirilium Corporation.

The advance is in the form of a 8.5% note receivable due the earlier of December 10, 2002, a qualifying initial public offering, the
sale of more than 50% of the voting stock of Cirilium or the merger of Cirilium into another Corporation. There is no proportionate
share of operating results in Cirilium as of December 31, 1999, as Cirilium effectively commenced operations on January 3, 2000.

The Company reported its initial 45% investment in Cirilium on the equity method and reported a loss of $9,855,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2000. During the quarter ended September 30, 2000, as a result of continuing losses by Cirilium, the Company
fully reserved operating advances made to Cirilium and also established a 100% reserve on all inventory dedicated to Cirilium
production. The total of the charges related to these actions, which are included in the $9,855,000 loss, amounted to $4,100,000.
Accordingly, as of December 31, 2000, the Company has no remaining basis in this investment. In addition, as a result of an
investment during the third quarter of year 2000 by Cirilium's CEO, the Company's interest was diluted to less than 20% and it has
discontinued accounting for its investment under the equity method.

Capitalized Software

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 86, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software to be Sold, Leased or
Otherwise Marketed ("SFAS No. 86"), requires capitalization of certain software development costs subsequent to the establishment
of technological feasibility. The Company's historical product development process was such that technological feasibility was
established upon completion of a working model. Costs incurred between completion of the working model and the point at which the
product was ready for initial shipment were not historically significant. Accordingly, prior to fiscal year 1999 all software
development costs were expensed as incurred and included in research and development costs. However, due to a change in certain
software development documentation during the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, certain software development costs required
capitalization. The amounts capitalized in the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six month period ended December 31,

© 1999 and in the year ended June 30, 1999, were approximately $1.5 million, $2.5 million, $1.5 ‘million and $2.0 million, respectively.

The Company amortizes capitalized software development costs once the product is available for sale over a period of three years.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation and amortization are provided on straight-line and accelerated
methods over the following useful lives:

Building......coceeeservermrenescsornseernnenns 30-40 years
Computer equipment and software ....  3-5 years
Machinery and equipment.................. 5-7 years
Fumiture and fixtures.......c.cccerereraranens 5-7 years
Leasehold improvements .................. 2-15 years

| Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price and related costs over the fair value assigned to the net tangible and identifiable
intangible assets of businesses acquired, and is being amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 5 to 20 years. The
carrying value of goodwill is evaluated if the facts and circumstances, such as significant declines in sales, eamnings or cash flows or
material adverse changes in the business climate, suggest that it may be impaired. The evaluation is based on the projected
undiscounted cash flows of the acquired operation over the remaining useful life of the related goodwill. To the extent such
projections indicate that future undiscounted cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying amounts of related goodwill an
impairment is recognized for the excess of the carrying amount over fair value. Fair value is determined based on projected discounted
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cash flows using current market interest rates. The evaluation necessarily involves significant management judgement. No impairment
has been indicated to date.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent capitalized software costs, acquired customer lists, work force, unpatented technology, technology
solutions and covenants not to compete, and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 3 to 7.5 years. As
part of the Company’s initial assessment of SFAS No. 142, certain amounts previously categorized as goodwill, were determined to
represent identifiable intangibles such as unpatented technology and related technology solutions. Accordingly, $13.3 million and
$12.1 million have been reclassified from goodwill to intangible assets, respectively, as of December 31, 2001 and 2000. The related
accumulated amortization of $5.4 million and $3.0 million have been reclassified from goodwill to intangible assets, respectively, as{\
of those same dates. There was no change to the estimated lives of the assets.

r
I
|
|

Income Taxes |
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities a.rq‘
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected
to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax laws (including rates) is recognized in
income in the period that includes the enactment date. :

The Company does not provide for federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its international subsidiaries because
earnings are reinvested and, in the opinion of management, will continue to be reinvested indefinitely.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue pursuant to Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 "Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements."
Accordingly, revenue is recognized when all four of the following criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence that an arrangement exists;
(ii) delivery of the products and/or services has occurred; (iii) the selling price is both fixed and determinable and; (iv) collectibility is
reasonably probable.

The Company generally recognizes product revenue, including sales to distributors, upon shipment of product. Revenue from
service obligations is recognized over the lives of the contracts. Revenues from long-term contracts that require substantiai
performance of customized software and hardware over an extended period are recorded based upon the attainment of scheduled
performance milestones. [

Direct finance lease income is amortized to lease income over the lease term in a manner that produces a constant rate of return on
the net investment in the direct finance lease (see Note 5). ‘

1

The Company accrues for warranty costs, sales returns and other allowances at the time of shipment.

The Company has a contract in which it provides a warranty to the customer during the third party installation period. If the
product does not function properly during this period, the Company is obligated to repair it. At initiation of this contract, the Company
recognized revenue at the end of the installation period due to its lack of history with the customer and contract, and resulting inability
to estimate warranty costs. During the year ended June 30, 1999, the Company began recognizing revenue upon shipment for this
contract based on the history provided by a large number of sales and its resulting ability to accurately estimate such warranty costs.
This change resulted in incremental revenues of $4.4 million for the year ended June 30, 1999. During the years ended December 31,
2001 and 2000, the six-month period ended December 31, 1999 and the year ended June 30, 1999, revenues recognized under this
contract totaled $8.4 million, $6.8 million, $4.2 million and $11.7 million, respectively.

Stock-Based Compensation
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, ("SFAS No. 123") defines a

fair value based method of accounting for employee stock options or similar equity instruments. However, it also allows an entity to
continue to account for these plans according to Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25 ("APB 25") and related interpretations,
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~ provided pro forma disclosures of net income are made as if the fair value based method of accounting, defined by SFAS No. 123, had
- been applied.

The Company has elected to continue to measure compensation expense related to employee stock purchase options using APB 25
and related interpretations, and has provided the required pro forma disclosures.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

'1 The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Six Months Year
Year Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, June 30,
2001 2000 1999 1999

Numerator — Basic and Diluted EPS:

Net income (1088) ......evvererervecrrseerronne $ (19.908) $ (30,950) 3 5385 $ 9173

Denominator — Basic EPS:
Weighted average common shares

OWtStANAING vvvvvvivvierercereennerenrcssierensnne - 36,643 _ 34,184 33,232 33,148
Basic earnings (loss) per share............ § (054) $ (091 $ 016 $ 028
Denominator — Diluted EPS:

Denominator — Basic EPS................. 36,643 34,184 33,232 33,148
Effect of dilutive

securities — common stock

OPHIONS. c..votrirecerserentrsseneroreeeresereeseane — — 1,214 1,280
Weighted average diluted common

shares outstanding.........ccococerriiinenns 36643 __34,184 34,446 34428
Diluted earnings (loss) per share......... $ (054 § (091 $§ 016 3 027

Weighted average shares issuable upon the exercise of stock options which are not included in the calculation of diluted (loss) per
share because they were anti-dilutive amounted to 1,701,235 and 1,711,817 for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000
respectively. '

| Treasury Stock

‘ In June 1998, the Board of Directors authorized the repurchase, at management's discretion, of up to 1,000,000 shares of the
| Company's stock. Shares repurchased under this authorization were used to offset dilution caused by the Employees Stock Purchase
Y( Plan and Stock Option Plan. The Company's repurchases of shares of common stock are recorded as treasury stock and result in a
| reduction of stockholders' equity. When treasury shares are issued, the Company uses a first-in, first-out method and any excess of
; repurchase costs over the reissue price is treated as a reduction of paid in capital. Any excess of reissue price over repurchase cost is

‘ treated as an increase to paid in capital.

E Self-Insurance

' The Company self-insures, with certain stop loss insurance coverages, for employee dental care. Claims expense is recorded in the
t year of occurrence through the accrual of claim reserves based on estimates of ultimate claims costs. Claims incurred but not yet
- reported are estimated and reserved for based on historical claims data.

: Operating Segments

. The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as those used for the consolidated entity. Performance is evaluated
' based on profit or loss from operations. Intersegment sales and transfers are accounted for based on defined transfer prices.
f

| Reclassification

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current period presentation.

|
|
!
|
I
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New Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statements of Financial Accounting Standards No. 141, Business
Combinations, (SFAS No. 141) and No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets (SFAS No. 142), effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives will no longer
be amortized but will be subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with the Statements. Other intangible assets will continue to
be amortized over their useful lives. The Company is currently reviewing the impact of SFAS Nos. 141 and 142 and will be
performing a fair-value analysis at a later date in connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 142 on January 1, 2002.

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 144,
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets (SFAS No. 144), which addresses financial accounting and,
reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and supersedes SFAS No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-
Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed Of, and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30,
Reporting the Results of Operations for a disposal of a segment of a business. SFAS No. 144 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2001, with earlier application encouraged. The Company is currently reviewing the impact of SFAS No. 144 and
has not determined the effect, if any, the adoption of SFAS No. 144 will have on the Company's financial position and results of]
operations.

3. Concentrations of Credit and Other Risks
Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash
equivalents, accounts receivable, marketable securities, and long-term marketable securities.

The Company's cash and cash equivalents are in high quality securities placed with major international banks and financial
institutions. The Company, in the normal course of business, maintains balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation's insurance limit. The balance in excess of the insurance limit at December 31, 2001 and 2000 was approximately $6.9
million and $4.7 million, respectively. The Company also maintains balances in foreign banks that are used for current operations of
subsidiaries located abroad. Foreign deposits that are uninsured amounted to approximately $8.2 million and $10.7 million as of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, respectively.

|

The Company's accounts receivable result primarily from credit sales to a broad customer base, both nationally and mtematlonally(
The Company routinely assesses the financial strength of its customers, requiring letters of credit from certain foreign customers, and
provides an allowance for doubtful accounts as necessary. f
Inventories !

Most components used in the Company's systems are purchased from outside sources. Certain components are purchased from
single suppliers. The failure of any such supplier to meet its commitment on schedule could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, operating results and financial condition. If a sole-source supplier were to go out of business or otherwise
become unable to meet its supply commitments, the process of locating and qualifying alternate sources could require up to several
months, during which time the Company's production could be delayed. Such delays could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's business, operating results and financial condition.

The Company estimates inventory provisions for potentially excess and obsolete inventory on a part level basis based on
_forecasted demand. Actual demand may differ from such anticipated demand and may have a material adverse effect on inventory
valuation.

International Operations

The Company's international business is an important contributor to the Company's net revenue and operating results. Howeveﬁ,
the majority of the Company's international sales are denominated in the U.S. dollar, and an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar
relative to foreign currencies could make products sold internationally less competitive. The operating expenses of the Companys

overseas offices are paid in local currencies and are subject to the effects of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates 1




The Company conducts manufacturing operations in Brazil and China. Foreign manufacturing is subject to certain risks, including
the imposition of tariffs and import and export controls, together with changes in governmental policies. The occurrence of any of
these events could have a material adverse effect on the Company's business, operating results and financial condition.

As of December 31, 2001, the Company maintained significant accounts receivable balances in the Asna Pacific and Latin America
regions, which are subject to the economic risks inherent to those regions.

4. Marketable Securities

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the difference between amortized cost and fair market value of the Company's marketable
securities and long-term marketable securities was not material. Accordingly, the Company has not disclosed unrealized gains and
losses. The Company's municipal bonds and corporate notes have maturities that range from three months to two years. As of
December 31, 2001 and 2000, marketable securities consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,
2001 2900
Municipal bonds and government securities ..... 3 — $ 878
Corporate bonds .........ccoevrviciuneciorneieinnnnenresennns — 1,232
Commercial Paper........cooeeeecvreerieveniniensnsnsiennns — —_
Mutual fUndS ..o — —
Total marketable securities..........occeuvenririerenn $ -
Municipal bonds and government securities ..... 155 161
Corporate bonds ..........ccoevvervvreerevcviirveverisiesnnnas — 659
- Total long-term marketable securities ............. 3155 $ 820

5. Net Investment in Direct Financing Leases

The Company's net investment in direct financing leases consists of lease contracts receivable, plus the estimated unguaranteed
residual value of the equipment at the lease termination date, plus initial direct costs less unearned income. Lease contracts receivable
represents the total rent to be received over the term of the lease reduced by rent already collected. Estimated unguaranteed residual
value of the equipment at the lease termination date represents an estimate, using industry standards, of the fair value of the leased
equipment at lease termination. Initial direct costs (IDC) represent those costs incurred to originate the leases and consist primarily of

i salaries and associated general and administrative costs of those personnel directly involved in lease origination activities. IDC are

amortized over the lease term in a manner that produces a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease. Unearned income
is the amount by which the original sum of the lease contract receivable and the estimated residual value exceeds the original cost of
the leased equipment. Unearned income is amortized to lease income over the lease term in a manner that produces a constant rate of
return on the net investment in the lease.

Interest expense associated with the debt incurred to fund direct financing leases and provisions for credit losses are recorded in
costs of revenue in the accompanying statements of operations. Interest expense and provisions for credit losses included in the costs
of revenue amounted to $3.8 and $18.1 million and $4.9 and $11.7 million, respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000.

During the year ended December 31, 2001, Golden Eagle Leasing recorded, in costs of revenue, an incremental charge to
strengthen credit reserves for certain segments of its receivables in the amount of $7.2 million in addition to its normal loan loss
provisions. This incremental charge represents management's estimate of potential loan losses that exceed its historical rate of loan
losses.

The following factors contributed to Golden Eagle's decision in the first quarter of 2001 to strengthen credit reserves:

+  We identified several new vendor programs that were established in 2000 and contributed significantly to funding volume in
2000, which were experiencing losses at higher levels than historic loss levels for other vendor programs. These programs
involved independent sales organizations providing additional services to the merchants (lessees) as part of the lease program.
If service levels were not as the merchants expected, the likelihood of their making required lease payments was reduced.
Losses for these programs began to exceed historical levels for the quarter ended March 31, 2001;
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+ Leases funded for electronic payments software, such as payment software loaded into a personal computer without the need
for a terminal, were at higher funding levels in 2000 than in previous years. Performance on these leases worsened in the first
quarter of 2001,

+ The overall credit mix of the portfolio was slightly skewed by a few percentage points toward higher risk credits, commonly
described as C and D rated credits. C and D credit leases booked in the year 2000 appeared to be performing significantly
worse than C and D credits in previous years as we analyzed activity through March 31, 2001; and

» The overall sofiening of the economy at the start of 2001, coupled with the results of our analysis of collection status and
default trends as of March 31, 2001, also contributed to the conclusion that the increase in reserves would be appropriate.

Net investment in direct financing leases consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2000
Lease contracts receivable.........cocoecivvrenn. $ 49,923 $ 76,306
Allowance for credit 108s€s ......coocvvvrveennene (5,306) (2,124)
Estimated unguaranteed residual value .... 11,433 16,117
Initial direct COSLS ..covrerrrrerrerseerrrerrervesnenens 2,627 3,594
Unearned iNCOME.......cevreeererrererccrneraresseses (17.674) _(31.768)
Net investment........coovveveinivecireneinseinns 3 41,003 $ 62,125

{

Golden Eagle's micro ticket leasing business is characterized by high incidences of delinquencies, which in turn can lead to)
significant levels of loan losses. The Company maintains an allowance for credit losses at an amount that it believes is sufficizat to
provide adequate protection against losses in its portfolio. The allowance is determined principally on the basis of historical lossT
experience and management's assessment of the credit quality of the loan portfolio at period end. Based on the historical loss

experience and our credit assessments, the Company believes collectibility of the minimum lease payments is reasonably predictable. '

Continued losses that exceed historical trends could result in the substantial impairment of Golden Eagle's goodwill, which
amounted to $20.4 million, net as of December 31, 2001,

Minimum rentals on the direct financing leases are contractually due as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2002 oo 22,567

p 111 SO 16,803

P11 O 8,397

p 111 S 2,156 |
349,923 ‘

6. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company's financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, net investment in direct financing
leases and long-term debt. As of December 31, 2001 and 2000 the fair value (see Note 2) of these financial instruments approximated
the respective carrying values.

7. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,
2001 2000
Purchased parts....  $ 21,502 $ 29,744
Work in process... 8,560 7,256
Finished goods..... 32,349 33,358
362411 $ 70,358
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8. Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2001 2000
Land and improvements...........ccoeeeens $§ 4701 § 4,701
Building.........coovuecniresceeecrerenenenenee 16,729 17,327
Computer equipment and software..... 18,175 16,742
Machinery and equipment.................. 22,604 18,794
Fumiture and fiXtures..........cocoenevevenens 5,919 5,865
Leasehold improvements...........cc....... 2.985 2.994
71,113 66,423
Less accumulated depreciation........... (33.149) (24.259)

Depreciation expense was $9.6 million, $8.3 million, $3.2 million and $5.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and

9. Long-term Obligations

Long-term obligations consist of the following (dollars in thousands):

Floating Rate Option note payable to Bank One, Arizona;
payable in semi-annual installments plus interest at a
variable rate, due April 1, 2019; collateralized by
unconditional, irrevocable, direct pay letter of credi.......

Loan and Security agreement ($45 million senior secured
credit facility consisting of revolving line of credit and
two separate term loans for $5 million and $15 million,
respectively collateralized by substantially all of the
assets of the borrower’s to the agreement):

Revolving line of credit bears interest at the greater of
8% per annum or the prime rate plus 2%, if amounts
are outstanding under the term loans, or the prime
rate plus 1% if there are no amounts outstanding
under the term loans, and includes a $6 million letter
of credit sub-facility, matures July 31, 2004...............

Term Loan A bears interest at the greater of 10% per
annum or the prime rate plus 3%, repayable in six
monthly principal installments of $833,333 with the
first installment due February 2002, matures July 31,
2002....cocierireerrereieeree et eseneresene s

Term Loan B bears interest at the greater of 14% per
annum or the prime rate plus 7%, repayable in
monthly principal installments of $250,000, with
first installment due September 2002, matures July
31, 2004 (net of discount of $861K).....c.cccvevecrrcverenens

Contract-backed term notes to Rothschild, (“the Notes™),
payable on a monthly basis including interest at 8.58%,
due on November 2006 ......coovivrimnsnninnenninieneneninns

Revolving credit agreement, ("the Credit Agreement")
bears interest at Company's option of prime or LIBOR
based rates payable monthly, due August 2002................

Receivables purchase agreement, ("the Conduit") bears
interest at Company's option of prime or LIBOR
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2000, the six months ended December 31, 1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, respectively.

December 31,
2001 2000
$ 9,585 $ 9,845
6,890 —_
4,008 —
14,291 —
24,839 —_
— 48,957




based rates payable monthly, due August 2001 ................ — 23,030 |
Note payable to Tokyo Leasing, bears interest at 285

basis points over US Treasury yield payable

monthly, expired December 31, 2000 ........coeveverermrrverennn. _ 4,750
Note payable to Webster Bank, bears interest at

Company's option of prime or LIBOR based rates, due

inJune 2001 .o e — 4,402
Note payable to third party, collateralized by

building in Brazil, payable in 51 installments

including interest at 11.5% plus a variable

inflation rate factor, matures February 2005............c.oe.e.. 1,440 2,079 }
Note payable to Dao Heng Bank, collateralized by l

building, payable in 84 equal monthly

installments including interest at the bank's

prime rate minus 1% per annum, matures December

2007ttt saseseseenens 1,434 1,615
Note payabile to director and stockholder bears interest at ,
12% annually due January 31, 2003 (see Note 15) .......... 3,100 1,500 [

Lease payable to Banc One Leasing, collateralized |
by equipment, payable in 48 equal monthly |
installments including interest at 8.62%, matures
JUNE 2004 ...ttt 1,084 1,456

Note payable to Bank One Arizona, collateralized by
equipment, payable in 35 equal monthly
installments including interest at 9.75%, matures «

September 2003.........c.ooieienirnn e eseres — 990

Note payable to Brazilian bank, collateralized by
$1.0 million letter of credit, interest at 18.7%,
due May 23, 2001.......ccrvreereeriniirinrnrreeresrsenseseresersesneses — 919

Loan and Security agreement with Webster Bank, interest (

at Company’s option of prime rate plus 1.75% or 30 day :

LIBOR plus 470 basis points, due August 2002............... 750 — |
Other capital IEASES ......c..icoveicernnrierrrsereresnesssssssssserersasens 341 491 ;
Other debt......oucuiceeerrieieiercrcrrrrninrrsisinsseseesessssssesessrsesssene 126 357 [

67,888 100,391 ;
Current portion of long-term debt .........cocevrererereeneerensnens (20.716) (84.036) |
Long-term deDbt......cccourmeireccariiircinennsnssesssesenseenenene $ 47,172 § 16,355 i

In connection with the floating rate option note, the related letter -of credit is subject to renewal on April 1, 2006. If the letter of
credit is not renewed, the entire remaining principal balance will become due and payable. The letter of credit is collateralized by land
and buildings. The Company is required to make increasing monthly deposits of $18,490 up to $81,752 over the life of the note into a
sinking fund to provide periodic repayment of the notes. The Company has entered into an interest rate swap agreement to fix the
effective interest rate at 7.895%. The interest rate swap agreement matures at the time the related note matures. The Company is
exposed to credit loss in the event of non-performance by the other parties to the interest rate swap agreement. However, the Company
does not anticipate nonperformance by the counter-parties. i

In August 2000, the Company entered into a $60 million revolving credit agreement ("Credit Agreement") provided by a syndicate
of banks, including Bank One, expiring in August 2002. At the Company's option, the facility bore interest at either prime or LIBOR
based rates payable on a monthly basis. The loan agreement was collateralized by domestic trade receivables, inventories and
marketable securities. Concurrent with this agreement, the Company also entered into a $50 million Receivables Purchase Agreement
(the "Conduit") that aliowed the Company to borrow against certain lease receivables generated through its wholly owned subsidiary,
Golden Eagle Leasing. This agreement expired in August 2001, and at the Company's option, bore interest at either prime or LIBOR

based rates, payable monthly. These agreements were replaced in 2001 by the $45 million senior secured credit facility dnscussed

hereafter. 1

On May 24, 2001, Golden Eagle securitized approximately $45.6 million of its equipment leases. The securitization was
accounted for as a financing transaction in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 140, “Accounting for
Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”. In connection with the securitization, Golden Eagle,
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through a special purpose subsidiary, Golden Eagle Funding Corp. issued $32 million of contract-backed term notes (the Notes) . The
Notes are collateralized by equipment leases acquired from Golden Eagle, security interest in the leased equipment, cash collateral and
reserve accounts, as well as other contractual rights and residual proceeds. The Notes bear interest at an annual rate of 8.58%.
Principal and interest are payable monthly based on a twenty-nine month amortization schedule. The principal balance outstanding on
the Notes at December 31, 2001 amounted to $24.8 million. The net carrying amount of the securitized equipment leases, included in
the net investment in direct financing leases at December 31, 2001, amounted to $31.7 million,

To secure the payment of the principal and interest on the Notes, and to maintain certain credit enhancement and liquidity levels,
an indenture trustee maintains possession of the contracts, and receives all payments on the contracts and the receivables for the
benefit of the noteholders. For this purpose, a segregated trust account was established at the corporate trust office of the indenture
trustee in the name of the indenture trustee for the benefit of the noteholders. At December 31, 2001 there was $6.4 million in
deposits, restricted for use in the cash collections, collateral and reserve accounts.

Under the terms of securitization, Golden Eagle retained the right to act as servicer of the contract assets. The initial measure of
the servicing assets net of servicing liabilities retained in the securitization was determined to be zero, and as such, no servicing asset
| or liability was recorded.

Cash flows from the securitized assets are used to satisfy the servicing fees, administration expenses and debt payments, including
any provision for funding the reserve and cash collateral accounts, related to the Notes on a priority basis. After all parties to the
agreement have been satisfied in order of priority, any excess funds are returned to Golden Eagle on a monthly basis.

The securitization agreements provide for additional credit enhancements, including excess collateralization and the funding of a
reserve account. In addition, the covenants under these agreements, among other things, require Golden Eagie Leasing to maintain
certain financial ratios and to maintain credit facilities in an aggregate amount of at least $30 million after April 30, 2002. Golden
Eagle was in compliance with such covenants as of December 31, 2001.

In June 2001, we entered into certain interim financing arrangements pending the completion of the refinancing of our credit
| facilities. On June 4, 2001, we entered a Loan Agreement with a group of eight investors pursuant to which we borrowed an aggregate
| of $3.4 million. The loans bore interest at 7.5% per annum and had a maturity date of September 5, 2001. The promissory notes
| evidencing the loans were convertible into shares of our common stock at a conversion rate of $3.16 per share. On July 30, 2001, all of
 the notes plus accrued interest were converted into an aggregate of 1,088,342 shares of common stock. In connection with this
borrowmg, we issued to the lenders Series B Warrants to purchase up to 460,000 shares of our common stock in the aggregate at an
, exercise price of $3.16 per share exercisable through June 4, 2003. In addition, on July 30, we entered into a Stock Purchase
| Agreement with several investors, including four of the Series B Warrant holders, under which they purchased an aggregate of
| 1,745,201 shares of our common stock at a price of $4.2975 per share.
\
? The estimated fair value of the Series B stock warrants at the date issued was $1.44 per share using a Black-Scholes option pricing
* model. The total fair value of these stock warrants of $0.7 million was recorded as additional paid in capital and loan discount. The
; loan discount was written off to interest expense during 2001 when the related loan agreements were converted to common stock. No
| warrants were exercised during 2001.

|

!

| On June 6, 2001, we borrowed $15 million from Michelle Investments LLC pursuant to a Loan and Security Agreement. The loan

»bore interest at 7.5% per annum and had a maturity date of June 6, 2002. In connection with the Michelle Investments loan, we
granted to Michelle Investments a Series A Warrant to purchase up to 1.0 million shares of our common stock, subject to certain

’, adjustments, at an exercise price of $3.19 per share exercisable through June 6, 2003. On July 31, 2001, we and Michelle Investments

"entered into a Stock Purchase Agreement under which Michelle Investments purchased 2,475,248 shares of our common stock at a
pnce of $3.03 per share. Michelle Investments paid for the stock through a $7.5 million reduction of the outstanding balance under
' this loan. Concurrently with the issuance of these shares to Michelle Investments, we repaid the remaining balance of the loan out of

‘ funds available under our new credit facility.

i The estimated fair value of the Series A stock warrant at the date issued was $1.36 per share using a Black-Scholes option pricing

 model. The total fair value of these stock warrants of $1.4 million was recorded as additional paid in capital and loan discount. The

| loan discount was written off to interest expense during 2001 when the related loan agreement was paid off. No warrants were

| exercised during 2001.

]
}
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As a condition to obtaining forbearance from our principal lenders under our pre-existing loan agreements, and to secure the $3.4
million in loans above, George Wallner, our Chairman and Chief Strategist and our principal stockholder, agreed to loan us $3.1
million and to subordinate these loans to our other indebtedness, including our new lending facility.

In August 2001, we replaced our principal credit facility with a new $45 million senior secured credit facility comprised of a $25
million revolving credit facility and two separate term loans for $5 million and $15 million. The two separate term loans were paid off
and the revolving credit facility paid down to zero in March 2002 in conjunction with our private placement of common stock
completed on March 22, 2002 (see Note 20). The maximum borrowing capacity under this facility is based on inventory and
receivables levels and other factors. The borrowers under the new credit facility are Hypercom Corporation and seven of our domestic
subsidiaries, and the guarantors consist of Golden Eagle Leasing and two of our foreign subsidiaries. At December 31, 2001, the
prime rate used to compute interest rates under the new credit facility was 4.75%.

Under the covenant provisions of the new credit facility, we have agreed to, among other things, maintain certain specified
financial ratios and consolidated net worth, not make certain distributions with respect to our capital stock (including cash dividends),
not make certain investments and not allow our subsidiaries to incur certain types and amounts of debt. In particular, subject to special
exceptions, these covenants prohibit us from:

* incurring any additional indebtedness;

+ incurring or permitting to exist any additional liens on our assets;

* engaging in a change of control transaction or other fundamental change, such as a merger, recapitalization or liquidation;

+ disposing of our assets, including equipment and inventory, outside the ordinary course of business;

+ prepaying or modifying the terms of our existing indebtedness, except in connection with a permitted financing;

* redeeming, repurchasing or paying dividends or other distributions on our capital stock; |

|
« engaging in certain transactions with our affiliates; \
+ failing to maintain speciﬁed levels of EBITDA and tangibie net worth and ratios of senior debt and total debt to EBIDTA,; and :

+ issuing or selling any prohibited preferred stock.
|
As of December 31, 2001 we had not met a covenant requiring the pledge of certain assets as collateral to the term loans of the
senior credit facility. However, on March 13, 2002 we obtained a waiver of any event of default related to this pledge during March
2002. The term loans were paid off in March 2002, concurrent with the completion of our private placement of common stock. r

As partial consideration for the senior secured credit facility, we issued to Ableco Holding LLC, an affiliate of one of our lenders,;
a Series C Warrant to purchase up to 375,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per share. The Series C
Warrant is exercisable over a period of five years. The Series C Warrant may be exercised, at the same exercise price, for an additional
350,000 shares at every six-month anniversary of the issue date of the term loans while there remain amounts outstanding under the
term loans. The estimated fair value of the Series C stock warrant to purchase 375,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, at the
date issued was $2.64 per share using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. No warrants were exercised during 2001. The total fair
value of these stock warrants of $1.0 million was recorded as additional paid in capital and loan discount. Amortization of the
discount in the amount of $.1 million was recorded as interest expense in 2001, v

We also paid to Roth Capital Partners LLC, which assisted us in obtaining our new credit facility, a fee of $2.5 million and issued
to it a Series D Warrant to purchase up to 312,477 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $5.33 per share. The Series D
Warrant is exercisable over a period of five years. The estimated fair value of the Series D stock warrant at the date issued was $2.24
per share using a Black-Scholes option pricing model. No warrants were exercised during 2001. The total fair value of these stock
warrants of $0.7 million was recorded as additional paid in capital and debt issuance costs. Amortization of the debt issuance costs,
including both the fair value of the Series D stock warrant and the cash fee paid, in the amount of $0.5 million was recorded as interest
expense in 2001. This fee and the value of the Series C and D Warrants will be amortized as part of the loan costs, and effectively
increase our interest rate. :

|
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The Company had a $10 million loan agreement with Webster Bank that expired in June 2001. The loan bore interest at either
prime or LIBOR based rates, payable on a monthly basis. Additionally, the Company had a $20 million loan agreement with Tokyo
Leasing that bore interest at 285 basis points over US Treasury yield, payable monthly. This loan agreement expired on December 31,
2000. These loan agreements were replaced by the securitization.

At December 31, 2001, the Company has a $3.85 million letter of credit issued by a bank to cover a performance bond requirement
from a contractual sale agreement in Brazil. Amounts drawn against this letter of credit bear interest at the bank's prime rate. The letter
of credit expires on November 30, 2003. There were no amounts outstanding on this letter of credit as of December 31, 2001.

As of December 31, 2000 the Company was not in compliance with certain covenants of the Credit Agreement, the Conduit and
Webster loan agreement, as well as delinquency restrictions under the Conduit. Such defaults created cross-defaults under the Tokyo
Leasing loan agreement. Consequently the balance outstanding under these agreements, which amounted to $81.1 million, was
classified as current debt at December 31, 2000. The Credit Agreement and Conduit were refinanced during 2001 as discussed above.

The aggregate principal payments due on long-term debt are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending December 31,

2002 i eeecenes 20,716
2003 .. 19,436
2004 ... 18,228
2005 o 668
2006 ..ot 8,578
Thereafter.....c.covvvviiniirnnne 262

| S--oLi8
‘ 10. Income Taxes

J .

‘ Income (loss) before income taxes consists of the following (dollars in thousands):
i
!

Six Months Fiscal Year

Years Ended Ended Ended
! December 31, December 31, June 30
j 2001 2000 1999 1999
i Income (loss) before income taxes:
! United States .........coveevererncrerennineenen $ (30,586) 3 (29,039) $ (2,482) §$ 13,702
j FOreign ....ccoovvevuvevnnicnnrcnenecensieineoees 5,701 (8.559) 8253 (1.136)
! $ (24,885) §(37.598) §. 5771 §.12,566

‘ The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
l as follows (dollars in thousands):

! December 31,
I 2001 2000
| Deferred tax assets, current:
| Inventory valuation and reserves........c.coccevueene $ 8,386 $ 7,000
* Compensation acCruals .....cocuvueerrivesseressissesssans 6,756 6,255
Allowance for doubtful accounts...........ceue..... 3,367 1,923
071113 SO S PIUOORUROUON — —
Valuation alloWance .......ccevveveveeevecreneriersnenens (2.419) (2,232)
Deferred tax assets, current.........c.coevcrvvennens $ 16,090 $ 12,946
Deferred tax assets (liabilities), non-current:
Tax 1oss carry forwards .........occeeerererscerisnerensens $ 10,759 $ 6,634
Property, plant and equipment............ccoeemennene (781) (917)
OhET ot st sas e snesnens 4.469 3.307
Valuation allowance ...........ccceeeresereressesssveness 3 (4,444) p I——
Net deferred tax assets, non-current ............. § 10,003 $ 9,024
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The components of income tax expense (benefit) are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Six Months Fiscal Year
Years Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, June 30,
2001 2000 1999 1999
Current
Federal $ (2,302) $ 8 $ — $ 3,584
State....... 15 9 12 277
Foreign 1,433 720 3,383 978
(854) 737 3,395 4,839
Deferred:
Federal... 4,274) (7,409) (1,503) (35)
State....... (510) (775) (250) )
Foreign .. 661 799 (1,256) (1.4006)
(4.123) (7.385) (3.009) __(1.446)
3 (4977) 3 (6.648) 3 386 3 339

Consolidated income tax expense (benefit) differed from the amount computed by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate to

income taxes before income (loss) as shown below:

Six Months Fiscal Year
Years Ended Ended Ended
December 31, December 31, June 30,
2001 2000 1999 1999
Tax expense (benefit) at the federal statutory rate........... (35.0)% (35.0)% 35.0% 35.0% f
State income taxes (benefit), net of federal income i
taX SFfECt 1uiviviiiriiiriercrn e (2.0) (2.0) 2.7 1.4
Foreign taxes attributable to foreign operations less |
than federal StatULOTY TALE .....oceeccreveriiirreniecsre e (0.3) 12.0 (13.2) 3.2) |
TaX CTEAIS ...veververerrarerereninrinreeessraesetesesasesesseneresersesessans (2.0) (5.3) (12.4) (9.0) !
Foreign sales COTPOTAtion...........covuemevereromserenesieenrensnsene: —_ — — (2.2) f
Tax eXempt iNLEIESt ......vvvuevereerererrnreirrensesessnmsessssnssnsens — — (0.5) (3.5 |
Translation 10SS........crcereruiveriieiemreniseieneerenerseeenseseesevenes 1.0 1.5 — 11.8
Change in valuation allowance..........ccccvveeverereerernenns 18.6 5.9 — —
Capital loss from investment in equity affiliate............... 04 0.9 — —
OhET ....ovrirctvietirenrenteereneenssraesarerastasesssasssassesssessranes (0.7) 4.3 0.5 (3.4)
Effective tax rate.........cccovvvvmrierererinencrereensssessserssesesnns (20.0)% (17.7Y% —67% 26.9%

The deferred tax asset increased during 2001 primarily due to the increase in net operating loss carryforwards The valuation
allowance increased by $4.6 million as management believes, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely than not that
some portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. During the year ended December 31, 2000 the Company prov1ded a
valuation reserve of $2.2 million, on its deferred tax assets relating to a portion of the compensation accrual that it estimates is not
likely of being recovered when it becomes deductible. ‘

As of December 31, 2001 and 2000, the Company had not provided deferred income tax benefits on cumulative losses of certain
individual international subsidiaries of $26.6 million and $27.1 million, respectively. If deferred income tax assets were recognized for
these net operating losses, they would be approximately $5.3million and $5.4 million, respectively. Upon distribution of earnings i
the form of dividends or otherwise, the Company may be subject to both U.S. income taxes and withholding taxes in its vanoup
international jurisdictions. As a result of certain employment actions and capital investments undertaken by Hypercom, income from
manufacturing activities in certain countries is subject to reduced tax rates, and in some cases is wholly exempt from taxes, for years
through 2005.

At December 31, 2001, the Company has U.S. Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $24 million.

These Federal and State net operating loss carryforwards will begin to expire beginning in 2019 and 2004, respectively, if nat
previously utilitzed.
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11. Profit Sharing Plans

The Company has a 401(k) profit sharing plan, which commenced in fiscal 1998, covering all eligible full-time employees of the
Company. Contributions to the 401(k) plan are made by the participants to their individual accounts through payroll withholding.
Additionally, the plan provides for the Company to make profit sharing contributions to the plan in amounts at the discretion of
management. The employer contribution for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six-month period ended December 31,
1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 was approximately $165,000, $1,119,000, $439,000 and $867,000 respectively.

12. Stockholders' Equity

Stock Options

During fiscal 1997, the Company's board of directors approved the Hypercom Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan (the "1997
Plan") which allocates 5,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance at the Company's discretion. The 1997 Plan authorizes issuance
of "incentive stock options" (as defined by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986), non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights,
restricted stock awards, performance share awards, dividend equivalent awards and other stock-based awards. Stock options issued
under the 1997 Plan become exercisable over a period determined by the Board of Directors (generally over five years) and expire ten
years after the date of grant.

In July 2000, the Company's Board of Directors approved the Hypercom Corporation 2000 Broad-Based Stock Incentive Plan (the
"2000 Plan"} which allocates 5,000,000 shares of common stock for issuance at the Company's discretion. The 2000 Plan authorizes
the issuance of non-qualified stock options and restricted stock awards, the majority of which must be issued to employees of the
Company who are not officers or directors. Non-qualified stock options issued under the 2000 Plan become exercisable over a period
determined by the Board of Directors, and expire after a period determined by the Board of Directors.

A summary of the Company's stock option activity and related information follows:

Years Ended Six Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2001 December 31, 2000 December 31, 1999 Jupe 30, 1999
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average Shares Average
under Exercise under Exercise under Exercise under Exercise
Options Price Options Price Optious Price Options Price
Beginning balance
outstanding ... . 7,057,043 3 8.67 5,639,684 5 74 5,084,679 $6.96 3,745,875 $5.83
Granted......... .. 15,653,600 3.75 2,830,850 11.62 969,780 9.21 1,520,304 9.98
Exercised. (80) 10.38 (548,962) 4.73 (500) 9.60 (3,750) 9.60
Forfeited .........cccnn..e. 047211 7.29 864,529 10.83 {414,275} 8.96 (177,750} 9.12
Ending balance
outstanding ............... 10,663,352 3632 2.057.043 3 8.67 3,639,684 $214 2,084,679 $6.96
Exercisable at end of
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The following table summarizes additional information about the Company's stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2001:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Shares Average Average Shares Average

under Remaining Exercise under Exercise
Range of Exercise Prices Options Contractual Life Price Options Price
$0.66 - 2.66 790,000 1.0 3 191 790,000 $ 1.9
$3.00- 3.50 3,642,650 9.13 3.49 202,806 349

$3.60-6.813 2,674,575 7.08 5.66 1,564,794 6.21 [
$7.06 - 15.00 556,127 8.05 10.69 1,497,016 10.51
10,663,352 4,054,616

The weighted average fair value of options granted in the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six months ended,
December 31, 1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 was $2.87, $8.90, $7.05 and $6.92 respectively.

Pro forma information regarding net income and net income per share is required by SFAS No. 123, and has been determined as i
the Company had accounted for its stock option plans under the fair value based method of that Statement. ]

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation method with the followingf
assumptions: risk free interest rates of 4.5%, 6.0%, 6.5% and 6.5%; an average expected time to exercise of five years; expected
volatility of 83%, 77%, 44% and 88%; and no dividends for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six months ended
December 31, 1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, '

For purposes of pro forma disclosures, the estimated fair value of the options is amortized to expense over the options' vesting
period. The pro forma information for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six months ended December 31, 1999 and the
fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 follows (dollars in thousands except for net income (loss) per share information):

. Six Months Year |

Year Ended Ended Ended ‘

December 31, December 31,  June 30, i

2001 2000 1999 _1999 i

Pro forma net income (loss) ........... $ (23,533)  $ (36,540) $ 3,462 $ 7,078 |
Pro forma net income (loss) per . |
share — basiC....c.cccevereevcrererereenens $ (0.64) $§ (1.07) 0.10 0.21 ;
Pro forma net income (loss) per [
share — diluted ..........ccocooererernn. $ (064) $ (1.07) 0.10 0.21 l

The above pro forma disclosure is not necessarily representative of the effects on reported net income for future years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan i

On September 8, 1997, the Company's Board of Directors adopted and. the stockholders of the Company approved the Hypercom
Corporation 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "Purchase Plan"). The Purchase Plan allows eligible employees of the Company
to purchase shares of the Common Stock through periodic payroll deductions. The initial offering penod commenced immediately
following the IPO and extended through June 30, 1998, with subsequent offering periods beginning every six months thereafter (every
three months effective November 16, 1999). At the end of each offering period, payroll deductions for the offering period are used to
purchase shares of Common Stock for each participant's account at a price equal to 90% (85% effective November 16, 1999) of the
fair market value of the Common Stock on either the first or last day of the offering period, whichever is less. Payroll deductions
under the Purchase Plan are limited to 10% of each eligible employee's earnings during the offering period, and no single participant
will be granted an option to purchase shares with a value in excess of $25,000 for each calendar year. The Board has reserved 625,000
shares of Common Stock for issuance under the Purchase Plan, subject to adjustment in the event of a stock split, reverse stock split,
stock dividend or similar event. Under the plan, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000, the six month period ended
December 31, 1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999 the Company sold 156,765, 83,641, 34,508, and 79,133 shares to
employees at weighted average prices of $2.84, $9.16, $8.61, and $9.09 per share, respectively.

Preferred Stock

On September 8, 1997, the Company's board of directors authorized 10,000,000 shares of $0.001 par value preferred stock. As of
December 31, 2001, 2000, and 1999, no shares were outstanding. i
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Directors' Stock Plan

On September 8, 1997, the Company's Board of Directors adopted and the stockholders of the Company approved the Hypercom
Corporation Directors' Stock Plan (the "Director Plan"). The Director Plan is administered by a committee appointed by the Board and
provides for an initial grant to each Director of an option to purchase 6,250 shares of Common Stock immediately following the
Offering. In addition, each individual who first becomes a Director after the date of the initial grant of options will be granted an
option to purchase 6,250 shares of Common Stock, and will receive an annual grant of options to purchase 6,250 shares of Common
Stock. The aggregate number of shares of Common Stock subject to the Director Pian may not exceed 93,750, subject to adjustment in
the event of a stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend or similar event. Options granted under the Director Plan are fully vested
and become fully exercisable on the first anniversary of the date of grant and have a term of ten years. The exercise price per share
under the Director Plan is equal to the fair market value of such shares upon the date of grant. In general, options may be exercised by
payment in cash or a cash equivalent, previously acquired shares having a fair market value at the time of exercise equal to the total
option exercise price or a combination thereof.

13. Brazil Devaluation

As a result of the devaluation of the Brazilian Real, the Company recorded a pretax loss of $4.4 million related to the net monetary
asset exposure for the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999. This loss is included in the $6.7 million foreign currency loss for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 1999,
14. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitments

The Company leases office and warehouse space, equipment and vehicles under non-cancelable operating leases. The office space
leases provide for annual rent payments plus a share of taxes, insurance and maintenance on the properties.

Future minimum payments under operating leases are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Operating
Years Ending December 31, Leases
2002 .. 2,326
2003 ... e 1,318
2004 ...t 729
2005 .. 507
2006 ..o 555

Thereafter.......ccccovvneienvnencnrincsenenne. o
Total minimum lease payments.... § 5435

Rental expense amounted to $4.5 million, $4.4 million, $2.1 million and $3.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2001 and
2000, the six months ended December 31, 1999 and the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, respectively.

Litigation
The Company is subject to other legal demands, which have arisen in the ordinary course of its business. Although there can be no
assurance as to the ultimate disposition of these matters and the proceedings disclosed above, it is the opinion of the Company's
management, based upon the information available at this time, that the expected outcome of these matters, individually or in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the results of operations and financial condition of the Company.
15. Related Party Transactions
Receivables from and Payable to Stockholders

During the year ended December 31, 2001, the Company entered into loan agreements as amended and restated, with George

Wallner, the Company’s Chairman in the aggregate amount of $3.1 million. The loans bear interest at 12% annually and are due
January 31, 2003. The outstanding balance of $3.1 million as of December 31, 2001 is included in long-term debt (See Note 20).
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In fiscal 1997, the Company made a loan to George Wallner, the Company's Chairman, in the principal amount of $749,000 and to
Paul Wallner, in the principal amount of $749,000. The loans are non-interest bearing and are due in full in March 2004. The
outstanding balance on these notes is included as a separate component of Stockholders' Equity.

16. Segment Information

As of December 31, 1999, the Company had two segments: Point-of-Sale (POS) Systems and Network Systems. POS Systems}
develops, manufactures, markets, and supports products that automate electronic payment transactions at the point of sale in merchant[
establishments. Network Systems develops, manufactures, markets, and supports enterprise-networking systems. In conjunction with|
the establishment of the Cirilium joint venture on December 31, 1999, Network Systems became immaterial to the Company's|
consolidated financial position and results of operations as a separate reportable segment. With the acquisition of Golden Eagle LLC,f
a direct-financing lease business, direct-finance leasing activities became a new reportable segment.

The Company's reportable segments are strategic business units that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because cach business requires different technologies and marketing strategies. The following table presents certain
segment financial information and the reconciliation of segment financial information to consolidated totals as of and for the years
ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2001 Year Ended December 31, 2000
POS and Network  Equipment POS and Network  Equipment /
Systems Leasing Total Systems Leasing Total
Revenue from external customers.............. $ 263,139 $ 28,565 § 291,704 $ 302,203 $ 25357  § 327,560
Intersegment revenues. ......c.coeverirererreenrees — — — — — -
TOtal FEVENUES ....vvornrveeeresrereceesessseereens $263139 $28565 §291.704 $302203  $25357 $ 327.560

Segment income (loss) from operations..... $§ 1386 $(376) § 6430 § 6110 §$(4397) § 1713
Depreciation and amortization expense ..... 3 11,110 § 2590 § 13700 § 9511 § L799 § 11310
SEMENE SSELS .....vovvveereerrecreeererseiecesennene § 775,988 $74804 §85079 $622741  $87103 3709844
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Reconciliation

Net revenues to external customers are based on the location of the customer. Geographic information as of and for each of the
. years ended December 31, 2001 and 2000 and for the six months ended December 31, 1999 and for the fiscal year ended June 30,

Year Ended December 31,
2001 2000

Net Revenues

Net revenues for reportable Segments.........coceevvvrenvcerererirecnnn. $ 291,704  $ 327,560
j Elimination of intersegment reVenues..........co.cecereereervrverenenns — —
‘ Total consolidated revVenues.........ovuvecvrnicerenesiiieenenenranes $ 291,704 § 327,560
| Income from Operations :

Income from operations for reportable segments.............c........ $ 6,430 § 1,713
‘f Elimination of intersegment profits (I0SS€s) .......cverervrereriranns — —
' Unallocated amounts:
i COTPOTALE EXPEINSES ....cooevereeererreneerererraneseererssrssseessnsnresesmssans (17,377) (24,756)
| Consolidated loss from operations.........ccocuveeevererrceerernnnns $ 30947y § (23,043)
Y Depreciation and Amortization Expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses from reportable
i SEEIMEIILS .euerirererreraereisienerarsesanssesessssasaresersrssassesesstrsesassassnenne $ 13,700 $ 11,310
“ Unallocated amounts:
; Corporate depreciation and amortization..........c.cvevecervsarens 2,045 1,929
;( Consolidated depreciation and amortization expense ........ $ 15745 $ 13,239
i :
1
J ‘ Years Ended December 31,

2001 2000
| Assets
1 Segment assets........coeerienivinnnnee § 850,792 § 709,844
; Unallocated amounts:
i Corporate assets........c.coeeeeeenen. 225,110 166,298
! Eliminations:
| Intercompany receivables........ (357,748) (255,980)
J Investments in subsidiaries...... (125,771). (94,124)
Advances to subsidiaries ......... (247,588) (158,261)

! Profit in ending inventory........ (7,107) 1,460
] Other profit eliminations ......... 6 —
\ Consolidated assets................ $ 337,694 § 369,237
|

? 1999 is presented in the table below (dollars in thousands):

|

E United States  Latin America  Asia/Pacific _Europe Total

l Year ending December 31, 2001

= REVENUES.....ococcririniiiiincinniiinnces $ 138,764 $ 73,243 $ 34,143 $ 45,554 3 291,704
Long-lived assets ......c.ocorvernnisinsvens 57,969 18,257 3,337 10,510 90,073
Year ending December 31, 2000
ReVENUES ..o $ 155,810 $ 76,360 . § 39,908 $ 55482 § 327,560
Long-lived assets ........coovvvrciiiennnces 61,036 20,232 6,405 10,069 97,742
Six months ending December 31,

1999

J REVENUES.....ocrriirmiirriririicnnte s $ 66224 $ 39,971 $ 21,275 $ 21,812 § 149,282

! Long-lived 8SSets ....c.oovrivrmernnssiisirecess 42,053 8,136 9,530 7,948 67,667

; Year ending June 30, 1999
Revenues.......oviiincriincnnenann, $ 141,100 $ 59,461 $ 34,253 $ 26,701 $ 261,515
Long-lived assets .....oovvrevrininsorinninnne 32,012 7,315 7,030 6,818 53,175

17. Acquisitions
! Golden Eagle LLC

! On January 10, 2000, the Company acquired, through a wholly owned subsidiary, substantially all of the assets and business and
assumed certain liabilities of Golden Eagle LLC ("Golden Eagle"). Golden Eagle is a lessor of POS equipment. The purchase price
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paid was $18.5 million in cash and $4 million in the Company's common stock. The purchase agreement provides for additional
payments up to $32.5 million, payable in the Company's common stock based on Golden Eagle's earnings over the next three-yea
period subsequent to the acquisition date, ending December 31, 2002. Such payments, if paid, would constitute additional goodwill
and be assessed annually in accordance with SFAS No. 142. No payments were made for the earn out periods ending December 31,
2001 and 2000.

The acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. Substantially all the purchase price was allocated tc;
identifiable net tangible assets and liabilities of $0.9 million and identifiable intangibles and goodwill amounting to $21.6 million}
which is being amortized over 15 years. The results of Golden Eagle's operations are included in the Company's consolidated
statements of operations and cash flows beginning from the date of acquisition. |

Pro forma information with respect to the acquisition of Golden Eagle includes the historical financial information of the Company
and Golden Eagle for the year ended December 31, 2000, and the six months ended December 31, 1999, as if the acquisition occurred
at the beginning of each period. Pro forma adjustments include only those adjustments directly attributable to the transaction, and as
such, are for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have been reported had
the acquisition actually occurred on such dates. Pro forma information (in thousands) as if the acquisition occurred at the beginning of
each period is as follows:

Year Ended Six Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2000 1999
REVENUES ....cccovvvrerreirrrrerseeeirnnenns $ 327,996 $ 153,161
Net income (108S) ....covevvrerererecrruennnns $ (30,949) $ 3,436 |
Basic earnings (loss) per share........ $ (091) $ 0.10 !

Diluted earnings (loss) per share..... $ (091 $ 0.10 |

18. Supplemental Cash Flow Information (in thousands)

Years Ended Six Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, June 30,
2001 2000 1999 1999 f

Interest Paid.......ccervercrrerererensererersscsinnnsensesnsens $ (8614) § (8,979 $ (541) $ (455

Income taxes paid........cccerevererrerinernenrsrerenens $ (2340) § _ (368) 348 $ (5,652) ‘

Noncash investing activities: f
Acquisition of plant and equipment through |
Capital 18ASES ...ccvrveeerrerreniereeereensiesntenens $ = § 1630 $ — 3 — ]

Contribution of assets to jointly-owned \
COIIPAILY «..veevrrenersrestosernanmorsraseresstsseneseaseasnne — — 716 —

Changes in accounts payable related to |
the purchase of property, plant and |
EQUIPIIENL .....vvvveerverrseresssrsssenssressenssenssaeeses $ 471 8 (36) 3 _(55) $ 210 ]

Noncash financing activities: ‘ 1

Issuance of stock to pay off notes payable....... (7.500) — — — }

Issuance of common stock warrants at fair
VAIUE 11 vvveriaerererereresreessreenreseserasesssrssnsrasrassens $ $ — $ — L J——

Beneficial conversion feature........cocvuvurirverennes $__(667) $ — $ — b I——

Conversion of notes payable and accrued

interest into coMMON StOCK ....evverurrrevrrseeene $__(3438) 3§ — 3 — 3 —

Acquisition of controlling interest in i
subsidiaries: P
Assets acquired (net of seller

fINANCING) .vovvecere s cceensiarseeencneneres $ —_ $ 69,512 $ 3,962 $ 18,290
Liabilities assumed...........cocremererceenerernesnenne — (41.378) (362) (7.942)
Net assets acquired........cccceccenseerivrennecrirsisenns — 28,134 3,600 10,348
Less issuance of treasury stock ..........covueunees - — — (1,069)
Less issuance of common stock ...........coeeceee. — (4,000) — —

Net cash paid for acquisition of
controlling interest in
subsidiaries.............. erevaeet st s e s sanrenes $ — § 24,134 $ 3,600 39279




19. Interim Financial Results (Unaudited)

The following tables set forth certain unaudited consolidated financial information for each of the four quarters in the years ended
December 31, 2001 and 2000. In management's opinion, this unaudited quarterly information has been prepared on the same basis as
the audited consolidated financial statements and includes all necessary adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments,
that management considers necessary for a fair presentation of the unaudited quarterly results when read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes. The Company believes that quarter-to-quarter comparisons of its financial results are

not necessarily meaningful and should not be relied upon as an indication of future performance. (Dollars in thousands, except per
share amounts.)

Year Ended December 31, 2001
March 31 June30  September 30 December 31 (1)  Fiscal Year

Netrevenue ..ovevreerernvnans $ 71,075 § 75,095 $ 71,011 $ 74,523 $ 291,704
Gross profit.....ccceereieennneae 17,944 25,810 26,340 28,037 98,131
Income (loss) from

OPErations ....cvevervenrvrsererenens (11,778) (2,080) 230 2,681 (10,947)
Net income (108S) ........vrveen. (13,253) (5,759) (2,385) 1,489 (19,908)
Basic eamings (loss) per

Share ....ooevveeinneneccinennn (0.39) 0.17) (0.06) 0.04 (0.54)
Diluted eamings (loss) per

SHATE o rvvvvereemserssersenseessresins (0.39) 0.17) (0.06) 0.04 {0.54)

Year Ended December 31, 2000
March 31 June30  September 30 December 31  Fiscal Year

Net revenue .......c.eeeveevverenena $ 77333 § 89,817 § 75915 $ 84,495 $ 327,560
Gross profit......coocieveceieennncnes 30,688 37,333 17,974 29,409 115,404 -
Income (loss) from

OPETALIONS .vcveerrvevernrereenerrae (2.832) 2,836 (17,778) (5,269) (23,043)
Net income (I08S) ....cccveennee (3,874) (1,235) (21,633) (4,208) (30,950)
Basic earnings (loss) per

SRATE covvvve e eeereemeereserenes (©.11) (0.04) {0.63) 0.12) (0.91)
Diluted earnings (loss) per

SRETE coeeeeeemeeeeerssoesrrrereens (0.11) (0.04) {0.63) (0.12) 0.91)

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2001 we reduced sales by $7.5 million to reflect a reserve for product
returns. This reserve for product retumns related to one particular customer whereby we decided take
back product for the purpose of providing additional product features and enhancements. These new
features and enhancements were not included in the specifications at the date of the original sales, and
we were not required to make the modifications under the terms of the original sale. We elected to
make a customer concession and provide the enhancements and have recorded this as a product return.
As a result of this sales return,: gross profit was reduced by $2.0 million during the fourth quarter of
2001. As the product is modified and determined to meet the customer’s revised requirements, we will
record sales when all requirements of SAB 101 are met.

20. Subsequent Events

On March 22, 2002, the Company completed a private placement of 7,870,000 shares of its common stock, raising $39.4 million in
gross proceeds before deducting commissions and expenses of the offering of approximately $3.2 million. The shares were not
registered with the SEC in reliance upon the exemption from registration contained in Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, as well as similar exemptions contained in the securities laws, rules and regulations of the applicable states. The shares may
not be re-offered or resold in the United States absent registration, or an applicable exemption from registration requirements of the
1933 Act. The Company has used the proceeds to pay off and cancel its term loans from the senior credit facility, pay down to zero
the balance on the revolving line of credit from the senior credit facility, pay off the balance due to George Wallner, the Company’s
Chairman. Remaining proceeds will be used for general corporate purposes.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Hypercom Corporation

Our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 1999 referred to in our report dated July 20, 1999
which report and consolidated financial statements are included in this Annual Report on Form 10K also included an audit of the
financial statement schedule for the year ended June 30, 1999 included at page 62 of this Form 10K. In our opinion, this financial
statement schedule for the year ended June 30, 1999 presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when
read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
July 20, 1999
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE

SCHEDULE II VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Additions
Balance at Chargedto  Charged to
Beginningof  Costs and Other Balance at

Period Expenses Accounts Deductions(A) _End of Period
(Doliars in thousands)
Year Ended June 30, 1999:
Allowance for doubtful

BCCOUNES..c.vvrreriarerrrerseieeecanannne 3,729 1,386 — (2,033) 3,082
Inventory reserves ...........occeeeenene, 4,643 2,925 — (2,295) 5273
Six Months Ended December 31,
1999:
Allowance for doubtful
ACCOUNTS...eervererrrrearreceresansenes 3,082 (24) (1,469) 1,589
Inventory reserves .......cccocvinniens 5,273 (281) 32 5,024
Year Ended December 31, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful
BCCOUMLS..c.vrvenrrerrrenrrrereresanseens 1,589 2,732 —_ (666) 3,655
INVeENtory TeServes ........ocooeecererennene 5,024 3,170 — (968) 7,226

Allowance for credit losses............ — 11,681 1,600 (11,157) 2,124
Year Ended December 31, 2001:
Allowance for doubtful
accounts........... e 3,655 1,780 — (1,406) 4,029
Inventory reserves ...........cccouvvvennee 7,226 3,794 — (250) 10,770
Allowance for credit losses............ 2,124 18,075 — (14,893) 5,306

(A) Write-offs of uncollectible amounts and recoveries of amounts previously written off.
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Amended and Restated Bylaws of Hypercom Corporation *

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Hypercom (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-35641))

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of June 6, 2001 by and among Hypercom Corporation,
Hypercom U.S.A., Inc., Hypercom Horizon, Inc. and Michelle Investments LLC (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
June 14, 2001)

Promissory Note dated June 6, 2001 executed by Hypercom Corporation, Hypercom U.S.A.,
Inc. and Hypercom Horizon, Inc. in favor of Michelle Investments LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
June 14, 2001)

Series A Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock of Hypercom Corporation dated June 6,
2001 issued to Michelle Investments LL.C (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 14, 2001)

Loan Agreement dated as of June 4, 2001 by and among certain lenders (listed by exhibit
thereto), Hypercom Corporation and George R. Wallner (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 14, 2001)
Security Agreement dated as of June 4, 2001 by and between George R. Waliner and certain
lenders to Hypercom Corporation (listed by exhibit thereto) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 14, 2001)
Form of Convertible Promissory Note issued to certain lenders to Hypercom Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on
Form 8-K filed June 14, 2001)

Form of Series B Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock of Hypercom Corporation
issued to each member of the Investor Group (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 14, 2001)

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of July 31, 2001 by and among Hypercom Corporation,
Hypercom (Arizona), Inc., Hypercom U.S.A., Inc., Hypercom Manufacturing Resources, Inc.,
Hypercom Horizon, Inc., Epicnetz, Inc., Hypercom Latino America, Inc., Hypercom Europe
Limited, Inc., Foothill Capital Corporation and Ableco Finance LLC (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 9, 2001)
Form of Series C Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock of Hypercom Corporation
issued to Ableco Holding LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 9, 2001)

Form of Series D Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock of Hypercom Corporation
issued to Roth Capital Partners LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Hypercom
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 9, 2001)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 31, 2001 between Hypercom Corporation and Michelle
Investments LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 9, 2001)

Stock Purchase Agreement dated July 30, 2001 among Hypercom Corporation, Norton Family
Living Trust UTD 2-4-91, Norton Family Living Trust UTD 2-15-96, Stevenson Family Living
Trust UTD 7-1-97, JR Norton Ventures Limited Partnership, Daniel D. Diethelm, Michael R.
Norton and Matthew A. Diethelm (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Hypercom
Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 9, 2001)
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* Filed herewith.

Lease, as amended, dated June 14, 1996, by and between Estes-Samuelson Partnership and
Hypercom, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-35641))

Hypercom Corporation Long-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-35641))t
Hypercom Corporation 1997 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-35641))t

Hypercom Corporation 2000 Broad Based Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration
No. 333-43622))t

Hypercom Corporation Nonemployee Directors’ Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.6 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration
No. 333-35641))t

Employment Agreement with Albert A. Irato, dated October 4, 2001 *¢

Amendment No. One, dated October 3, 2001, to Loan and Security Agreement dated July 31,
2001 by and among Hypercom Corporation, certain of it subsidiaries and Foothill Capital
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001)

Amendment No. Two, dated November 13, 2001, to Loan and Security Agreement dated
July 31, 2001, by and among Hypercom Corporation, certain of its subsidiaries and Foothill
Capital Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001)

Amendment No. Three dated February 13, 2002, to Loan and Security Agreement dated July
31, 2001 by and among Hypercom Corporation, certain of its subsidiaries and Foothill Capital
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 19, 2002)

Waiver and Consent dated March 13, 2002, by and among Hypercom Corporation, certain of its
subsidiaries and Foothill Capital Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 26, 2002)

Loan and Security Agreement dated August 24, 2001, by and between Golden Eagle Leasing,
Inc. and Webster Bank (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2001)

Loan and Security Agreement dated August 28, 2001, by and between Golden Eagle Leasing,
Inc. and Congress Financial Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to
Hypercom Corporation’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 11, 2001)

Loan Agreement, dated October 12, 1996 by and between Hypercom Pty. Ltd. and George
Wallner (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-35641))f

Loan Agreement, dated October 12, 1996 by and between Hypercom Pty. Ltd. and Paul Wallner
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to Hypercom Corporation’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-35641))t

Waiver and Consent dated March 25, 2002, by and among Hypercom Corporation, certain of its
subsidiaries and Foothill Capital Corporation*

List of Subsidiaries (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Hypercom Corporation’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333-68202))

Consent of Ernst & Young L.L.P., independent accountants*

Consent of PricewaterhouseCooper L.L.P., independent accountants*

Powers of Attorney*

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements and Risk Factors *

+ Management or compensatory plan or agreement.
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CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-40457, 333-40459, 333-40461, 333
40333, 333-43622 and 333-67440) pertaining to the various stock issuance programs of Hypercom Corporation of our report date
February 13, 2002, except for Note 20 as to which the date is March 22, 2002, with respect to the consolidated financial statement
and schedule of Hypercom Corporation for the year ended December 31, 2001 included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for th
year ended December 31, 2001.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Phoenix, Arizona
March 29, 2002




EXHIBIT 23.2

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration Statements on Form S-8 (File Nos. 333-40457, 333-40459,
333-40461, 333-40333, 33343622 and 333-67440) of Hypercom Corporation of our reports dated July 20, 1999 relating to the
financial statements and financial statement schedule, which appear in this Form 10-K. ‘

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP

Phoenix, Arizona

. March 29, 2002
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS !
|
(

In passing the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the “Reform Act”), Congress encouraged public companies to make |
“forward-looking statements” by creating a safe harbor to protect companies from securities law liability in connection with forward-
looking statements. We intend to quahfy both our written and oral forward-looking statements for protection under the Reform Act
and any other similar safe harbor provisions.

“Forward-looking statements” are defined by the Reform Act. Generally, forward-looking statements include expressed ! ‘
expectations of future events and the assumptions on which the expressed expectations are based. The words “believe,” “expect,”’
“anticipate,” “intends,” “forecast,” “project,” and similar expressions identify forward-looking statements. Such statements may
include, but not are limited to, projections regarding demand for our products and the replacement cycle for our existing products and'
the POS industry in general, the adequacy of our current facilities to meet our operational needs, the sufficiency of loss reserves for.
Golden Eagle’s loan portfolio, and market acceptance of and improved margins on our ePic products, as well as assumptions related to
the foregoing. Such forward-looking statements are within the meaning of that term in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All forward-looking statements are inherently,
uncertain as they are based on various expectations and assumptions concerning future events and they are subject to numerous known
and unknown risks and uncertainties that could cause actual events or result to differ materially from those projected. Due to those
and other uncertainties and risks, the investment community is urged not to place undue reliance on our written or oral forward-
looking statements. We undertake no obligation to update or revise this Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking
Statements to reflect future developments. In addition, we undertake no obligation to update or revise forward-looking statements to
reflect changed assumptions, the occurrence of unanticipated events, or changes to future operating results over time.

We provided the following risk factor disclosure in connection with our continuing effort to qualify our written and oral forward-
looking statements under the safe harbor protection of the Reform Act and any other similar safe harbor provisions. Important factors
currently known to management that could cause actual results to differ materially from those in forward-looking statements include
the disclosures contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K to which this statement is appended as an exhibit and also include the
following:

RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to Our Business

We have incurred significant losses and negative cash flows. If we are unable to improve our financial performance, the price of
our common stock will suffer.

We incurred losses of $19.9 million for the year ended December 31,2001 and $31.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2000,
We had negative cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2000. Although we have undertaken aggressive efforts to cut costs and
increase our cash flows, it is possible that the steps we have taken will not be successful or of sufficient impact for us to acmeve
profitability or maintain positive cash flows. If we fail to do so, the price of our common stock will suffer.

The loss of one or more of our key customers could significantly reduce our revenues and profits.

We have derived, and believe that we may continue to derive, a significant portion of our revenues from a limited number of large
customers. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2001, our two largest customers accounted for 12.7% of our net revenue and our
five largest customers accounted for 22.0% of our net revenue. As of December 31, 2001, three customers represented 76.2%, or
$86.4 million, of our total backlog of $113.4 million. Our customers may buy less of our products or services depending on their own
technological developments and internal budget cycles. A major customer in one year may not purchase any of our products or
services in another year, which may negatively affect our financial performance.

We may accumulate excess or obsolete inventory that could result in unanticipated price reductions and write-downs and adversely
affect our financial condition. l
Managing the proper inventory levels for components and finished products is chalienging. In formulating our product offenngs, we
* have focused our efforts on providing to our customers products with higher levels of functionality, which requires us to develop and
incorporate cutting edge and evolving technologies in our products and product components. This approach tends to increase the rigk

|
!
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of obsolescence for products and components we hold in inventory and may compound the difficulties posed by other factors that
affect our inventory levels, including the following:

¢ the need to maintain significant inventory of components that are in limited supply;
e  buying components in bulk for the best pricing;

e  responding to the unpredictable demand for products; and

e  responding to customer requests for quick delivery schedules.

As a result of these factors, we regularly run the risk of maintaining excess inventory levels. If we accumulate excess or obsolete
inventory, price reductions and inventory write-downs may result, which could adversely affect our business and financial condition.

We expect our results of operations to vary from quarter to quarter and, as a result, we may not meet the expectations of our
investors and equity analysts, which could cause the price of our common stock to fluctuate or decline.

Our revenues and results of operations have fluctuated significantly in the past and are likely to fluctuate significantly in the future.
For example, since January 1, 2000, our net revenues have ranged from a low of $71.0 million for the quarter ended September 30,
2001 to a high of $89.8 million for the quarter ended June 30, 2000. Gross profit and gross profit as a percentage of net revenues have
ranged from a low of $17.9 million and 23.7%, respectively, for the quarter ended September 30, 2000 to a high of $37.3 million and
41.6%, respectively, for the quarter ended June 30, 2000. Accordingly, we believe that period-to-period comparisons of our results of
operations may be misleading. You should not rely upon the results of one quarter as an indication of future performance. Our
revenue and operating results may fall below the expectations of securities analysts or investors in some future quarter or quarters.
Our failure to meet these expectations could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results may vary depending on a number of factors, including:

e the type, timing and size of orders and shipments for major customers;

e  demand for and acceptance of our new product offerings, and returns or warranty costs from new product failures that
exceed our established reserves;

¢ delays in the implementation and delivery of our products and services, which may impact the timing of our recognition
of revenue;

. write-offs of receivables in excess of reserves;
e  variations in product mix and cost during any period;

e  development of new relationships and maintenance and enhancement of existing relationships with customers and
strategic partners;

¢  manufacturing or production difficulties;
. deferral of customer contracts in anticipation of product or service enhancements;
e  availability of financing; and

e industry and economic conditions, including competitive pressures and inventory obsolescence.
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Our sales cycles are relatively long and unpredictable, and may be subject to seasonality, which makes it difficult to forecast our.
revenue and could result in volatility in the price of our common stock. ‘

Our sales and implementation cycles vary substantially from customer to customer, which makes it difficult to forecast our revenue;
and couid result in volatility in the price of our common stock. Prospective customers frequently view the purchase of our products |
and services as part of a long-term, enterpnse—w1de strateglc dec1s1on As a result potentxal customers may take an extended period of'

the POS systems industry is generally dependent on system roll-outs with fixed time horizons. Our operating results may vary
significantly if we fail to obtain major projects, if major projects are cancelled or delayed or if we fail to replace projects that have/
been completed or are nearmg completion. We have also experienced, and expect to continue to experience, quarters or periods wherc\
individual product or service orders are significantly larger than our typical product or service orders.

In addition, we may experience seasonality in the sales of our products and services. For example, net revenue and results of
operations tend to be stronger from July to December due increased POS purchases during the holiday season and patterns in the
capital budgeting and purchasing cycles of our current and prospectlve customers. These seasonal variations in our sales may lead to
fluctuations in our quarterly operating results and volatility in the price of our common stock.

Our results of operations could be harmed if our operating expenses do not correspond with the timing of our revenue.

Most of our operating expenses, such as employee compensation and rental expense for properties, are either relatively fixed in the
short-term or incurred in advance of sales. Moreover, our spending levels are based in part on our expectations regarding future
revenue. As a result, if revenue for a particular quarter is below expectations, we may not be able to proportionately reduce operating
expenses for that quarter. A shortfall in revenue, therefore, could have a disproportionate effect on our expected operating results for
that quarter and could cause the trading price of our common stock to decline. \

Terrorist attacks, such as the attacks that occurred in New York and Washington, D.C. on September 11, 2001, and other acts of
violence or war may affect the markets in which our common stock trades, the markets in which we operate and our profitability. |

On September 11, 2001, the United States was the target of terrorist attacks of unprecedented scope. These attacks may lead to arme ‘
hostilities or to further acts of terrorism and civil disturbances in the United States or elsewhere. The terrorist attacks cause
instability in the global financial markets, and contributed to downward pressure on securities prices of United States publicly trade
companies, such as us. Future terrorist attacks or armed conflict could result in greater economic instability and further depress
securities prices, including the price of our common stock. (

The September 11 attacks disrupted the global insurance and reinsurance industries, and we may experience delays in renewing somt
insurance policies and may not be able to obtain insurance at historical levels for all of our facilities. Future terrorist attacks an
armed conflicts could affect our domestic and international sales, disrupt our supply chain and impair our ability to produce an
deliver our products. Such attacks and conflicts could directly impact our physical facilities or those of our suppliers or customerd,
both in the United States and elsewhere. Qur primary facilities include administrative, sales and R&D facilities in the United States,
and manufacturing facilities in China and Brazil. In addition, additional acts of terrorism may make transportation of our supplies an
products more difficult or cost prohibitive. Any impairment of our financial performance as a result of terrorist attacks or arme
hostilities would increase the risk of non-compliance with the financial covenants under our senior secured credit facility and other
lending arrangements, resulting in events of default and the possible acceleration of our indebtedness.

We are dependent on current management and key personnel. The loss of certain of these individuals could cause material har.
to the operation and future prospects of our business.

George Wallner, our Chairman and Chief Strategist, Christopher Alexander, our President and Chief Executive Officer, Jonathon
Killmer, our Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Operating Officer and Chief Administrative Officer, and Jaino
Gonzalez, President of Hypercom Transactions Systems Group, are instrumental in the development, growth and operations of
Hypercom. The loss of any of these key executives could have a material adverse effect on the operation and future prospects of our

business. j
{

We also believe our future success will depend largely upon our ability to attract and retain highly-skilled hardware engineers,
managerial, and sales and marketing personnel. We compete against numerous companies, including larger, more established
companies, for our personnel. We do not know if we will be successful in attracting or retaining skilled personnel. Further, the loss ¢f
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certain key employees or our inability to attract and retain other qualified employees could negatively affect our financial
performance.

A disruption in the manufacturing capabilities of our third-party manufacturers or suppliers would negatively impact our ability to
meet customer demands.

We rely on third-party manufacturers to manufacture and assemble our products. We also depend upon third-party suppliers to deliver
components that are free from defects, competitive in functionality and cost and in compliance with our specifications and delivery
schedules. Since we generally do not maintain large inventories of our products or components, any termination of, or significant
disruption in, our relationship with our third-party manufacturers or suppliers may prevent us from filling customer orders in a timely
manner,

We have occasionally experienced, and may in the future experience, delays in delivery of products and delivery of products of
inferior quality from some of our third-party manufacturers. Although alternate manufacturers and suppliers are available to produce
our products and product components, the number of manufacturers or suppliers of some of our products and components is limited,
and qualifying a replacement manufacturer or supplier could take several months. In addition, our use of third-party manufacturers
reduces our direct control over product quality, manufacturing timing, yields and costs. Disruption of the manufacture or supply of
our products and components or a third-party manufacturer’s or supplier’s failure to remain competitive in functionality or price could
delay or interrupt our ability to manufacture or deliver our products to customers on a timely basis, which would have a material
adverse effect on our business.

We face financial losses from our Golden Eagle subsidiary, which could result in a substantial write-off of our investment in that
enterprise.

In January 2000, our wholly-owned subsidiary, Hypercom Financial, Inc., purchased substantially all of the assets and business and
assumed certain liabilities of Golden Eagle LLC (now Golden Eagle Leasing, Inc., herein referred to as “Golden Eagle™). Golden
Eagle is a “micro ticket” leasing organization, which advances funds under debt financing leases for point-of-sale terminals with a
retail price of under $5,000. To date, Golden Eagle has required substantially more operational funding than we had initially
anticipated and has not performed as expected. Continuing financial losses from this subsidiary could result in a substantial write-off
of our investment in that enterprise.

Our ePicNetz application services provider may not prove successful.

We established ePicNetz in 2000 as our application service provider unit to support our ePic corporate initiatives. We have expended

substantial sums in establishing ePicNetz and in developing the software that drives our comprehensive internet-based retail
countertop commerce and information systems, called ePOS-infocommerce or ePic. Although adoptions by merchants appears

promising, we cannot guarantee that ePicNetz will generate substantial revenues or achieve profitability. If ePicNetz is not successful,

it could have a material adverse effect on our financial performance and result in our decision to cancel the ePicNetz program.

We have in the past and may in the future make acquisitions and strategic investments, which will involve numerous risks. We
may not be able to address these risks without substantial expense, delay or other operational or financial problems.

. We may acquire or make substantial investments in related businesses, technologies or products in the future. These acquisitions or

investments involve various risks, such as:
e the difficulty of assimilating the technologies, operations and personnel of the acquired business, technology or product;
e the potential disruption of our ongoing business, including the diversic;n of management attention;
e the possible inability to obtain the desired financial and strategic benefits from the acquisition or investment;
e the loss of key employees of an acquired business; and

o the possibility of our entering markets in which we have limited prior experience.
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Future acquisitions and investments could also result in substantial cash expenditures, potentially dilutive issuance of our equity y
securities, our incurring of additional debt and contingent liabilities, and amortization expenses related to other intangible assets that
could adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition. Qur prior acquisitions have consumed and will continue !
to consume substantial management attention and company resources, and will continue to require substantial efforts and involve
ongoing risks in the integration of these operations. In this regard, to date, we have not achieved expected results from certain
acquisitions, particularly Golden Eagle. We will be dependent on the retention and performance of these businesses’ existing |
management and employees for the day-to-day management and future operating results of these businesses.

Our products may contain defects which may be difficult or even impossible to correct. Product defects could result in sales delays,
delays in our collection of receivables and claims against us.

We offer technically complex products which, when first introduced or released in new versions, may contain software or hardware
defects that are difficult to detect and correct. The existence of defects and delays in correcting them could result in negative
consequences, including the following:

e  delays in shipping products;

e loss of market acceptance for our products;

*  additional warranty expenses;

¢  diversion of resources from product development; and

e loss of credibility with distributors and customers.
Even though we and our customers test all of these products, it is likely that defects will continue to be identified after products are
shipped. In recent periods, we have experienced various issues in connection with product launches, including the need to rework
these products and stabilize product designs. Correcting defects can be a time-consuming or impossible task. Software errors may
take several months to correct, and hardware errors may take even longer. These issues have resulted in sales delays and delays in the

collection of receivables, which has exacerbated our cash position and could adversely affect our business in the future.

If we cannot manage the additional challenges presented by our international operations, our revenues and profitability may

suffer.

We derived approximately 52.4% of our total net revenues from sales outside the United States, principally in Latin America
(including Mexico) and Europe, for the year ended December 31, 2001. We expect that international sales will continue to account for
a significant percentage of our net revenue in the foreseeable future. Because a substantial percentage of our revenues are derived
from foreign customers, we face numerous risks associated with conducting international operations, any of which could negatively
affect our financial performance and results of operations. These risks include the following: |

*  we are subject to foreign regulatory requirements that may change without notice;

e our expenses related to sales and marketing and research and development may increase;

e we are subject to various export restrictions, and export licenses may not always be available;

e  we are subject to foreign tariffs and other trade barriers;

e  some of the foreign countries that we deal with suffer from political and economic instability;

*  some of the foreign currencies that we deal with fluctuate significantly and are subject to inflationary pressures;

e we may have difficulty staffing and managing our foreign operations;
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We are subject to anti-takeover effects of certain charter and bylaw provisions and Delaware law.
We have provisions in our certificate of incorporation and bylaws which:

e make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of us, and discourage a third party from attempting to acquire
control of us;

*  may limit the price some investors are willing to pay for our common stock;

*  enable us to issue preferred stock without a vote of our stockholders or other stockholder action;

e  provide for a classified Board of Directors and regulate nominations for the Board of Directors;

*  make it more difficult for stockholders to take certain corporate actions; and

+«  may delay or prevent a change of control.
These and other provisions of our charter documents, as well as certain provisions of Delaware law, could delay or make more
difficult certain types of transactions involving a change of control of Hypercom or our management. As a result, the price of our

common stock may be adversely affected.

Our stack price could be affected because a substantial number of shares of our common stock will be available for sale in the
Suture.

A substantial number of shares of our common stock will be available for future sale. Sales in the public market of a substantial
number of shares of common stock, or the availability of such shares for sale, could depress the market price of the common stock and
could impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of additional equity securities.

We do not plan to pay any dividends on our common stock.

We do not anticipate paying any dividends on, or repurchasing shares of, our common stock for the foreseeable future. OQur credit
agreements restrict our ability to pay cash dividends.

Risks Related to Our Indebtedness

Our indebtedness and the restrictions imposed by the terms of our debt could adversely affect our financial health and our ability
to respond to changes in our business.

As a result of the terms of our senior secured credit facility:
e  our vulnerability to adverse general economic conditions and competitive pressures is heightened;

¢  we will be required to dedicate a portion of our cash flow from operations to repayment of debt, limiting the availability
of cash for other purposes;

e we are and will continue to be governed by restrictive covenants that require us to maintain certain financial ratios and
limit our ability to, among other things, borrow additional funds, make capital expenditures, pay dividends, make
investments, purchase our stock, consummate asset sales or conduct mergers and acquisitions;

e  our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and industry will be limited;

e  we are sensitive to fluctuations in interest rates because some of our debt obligations are subject to variable interest
rates; and
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e  our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working capital, capital expenditures, acquisitions, general
corporate purposes or other purposes may be impaired.

We cannot assure you that our leverage and such restrictions will not materially and adversely affect our ability to finance our future
operations or capital needs or to engage in other business activities. In addition, we cannot assure you that additional financing will be
available when required or, if available, will be on terms satisfactory to us. Further, even if we were able to obtain additional
financing, we may be required to use proceeds to repay a portion of our debt.

Our loan agreement contains restrictive and financial covenants and, if we are unable to comply with these covenants, we will be
in default. A default could result in the acceleration of our outstanding indebtedness, which would have an adverse effect on ou
business and the price of our common stock.

In August 2001, we entered into a new senior secured credit facility. This new credit facility and our other financing arrangemen
contain customary covenants that require us to maintain certain specified financial ratios and consolidated net worth and restrict o
ability to make certain distributions with respect to our capital stock, prepay other debt, or undertake various other corporate activities
For example, our senior secured credit facility contains covenants that, subject to specified exceptions, prohibit us from:

s incurring any additional indebtedness;

e  incurring or permitting to exist any additional liens on our assets;

e  engaging in a change of control transaction or other fundamental change, such as a merger, recapitalization o
liquidation;

o  disposing of our assets, including equipment and inventory, outside the ordinary course of business;

e  prepaying or modifying the terms of our existing indebtedness, except in connection with a permitted refinancing;
¢  redeeming, repurchasing or paying dividends or other distributions on our capital stock;

¢  engaging in certain transactions with our affiliates;

¢ failing to maintain specified levels of EBITDA and tangible net worth and ratios of senior debt and total debt t
EBITDA; and

e  issuing or selling any prohibited preferred stock.

If we are unable to comply with any of these covenants, we will be in default, which could cause cross-defaults under other loans
agreements. A default, if not waived by our lenders, could result in the acceleration of our outstanding indebtedness and cause o
debt to become immediately due and payable. If we were required to obtain waivers of defaults, we may incur significant fees
transaction costs. If waivers of defaults are not obtained and acceleration occurs, we would not be able to repay our debt and it
unlikely that we would be able to borrow sufficient additional funds to refinance this debt. Even if new financing is made available
us, it may not be available on acceptable terms.
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e there is a tendency for international payment cycles to be longer than for our North American operations;

J e we may have difficulty collecting accounts receivable; and

| e  we are subject to the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which may place us at a competitive disadvantage to foreign
| companies that are not subject to similar regulations.

. If we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary technology, our competitors may develop products substantially similar to
| our products and use similar technologies, which may result in the loss of customers.

We rely on patent, copyright, trademark and trade secret laws, as well as confidentiality, licensing and other contractual arrangements,
| to establish and protect the proprietary aspects of our products. Our efforts may result in only limited protection, and our competitors
may develop, market and sell products substantially equivalent to our products, or utilize technologies similar to those used by us. If
we are unable to adequately protect our proprietary technology, these third parties will be able to compete more effectively against us,
which could result in the loss of customers and affect our business adversely.

Our products and other proprietary rights may infringe on the proprietary rights of third parties, which may expose us to litigation.

| Although we believe that our products do not infringe on any third party’s patents, we cannot be certain that we will not become
| involved in litigation involving patents or proprietary rights. Patent and proprietary rights litigation entails substantial legal and other
{ costs, and we do not know if we will have the necessary financial resources to defend or prosecute our rights in connection with any
| litigation. Responding to, defending or bringing claims related to our intellectual property rights may require our management to
“ redirect our human and monetary resources to address these claims.

1

i Risks Related to the Industry
i The markets in which we compete are highly competitive and subject to price erosion.
\

The market for our products and services is highly competitive. Increased competition from manufacturers or distributors of products
- similar to or competitive with our products, or from service providers that provide services similar to our services, could result in price
| reductions, reduced margins and a loss of market share or could render our products obsolete.

| We expect to continue to experience significant and increasing levels of competition in the future. In many of our markets, traditional
\‘i computer hardware manufacturing, communications and consulting companies provide the most significant competition. With respect
| to our POS products, we also compete with cash registers that provide built in POS capabilities and producers of software that
+ facilitates electronic payment over the internet, as well as other manufacturers of POS terminals. We must also compete with smaller
! service providers that have been able to develop strong local or regional customer bases. Most of our competitors and potential
| competitors are more established, benefit from greater name recognition and have significantly greater resources than we do.
‘ Moreover, we have little or no proprietary barriers to entry that could keep our competitors from developing products or services and

| technology similar to ours or from selling competing products or services in our markets.
]

1 We are subject to industry and technology changes and are dependent on development and market acceptance of new products. If
' we are unable to adequately respond to these changes and to market demands in a timely manner, our business will not be
' successful.

iThc: industry in which we operate is characterized by rapid changes in technology and numerous new product introductions. Our
success, particularly in this industry, depends to a large degree upon our continued ability to offer new products and enhancements to
. our existing products to meet changing market and industry requirements. The introduction of new products and technologies by third

! parties could have an adverse effect on the sales of our existing products and technologies. We cannot be certain of our ability to
, successfully: :

o identify, develop, or manufacture new products and technologies;

|
|
‘ »  market or support these new products and technologies;
1
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e  control delays in introducing new products;
e  gain market acceptance for the new products and technologies; or {
e  respond to technological changes, new industry standards, and announcements of new products by competitors.

Developing new products and technologies is a complex, uncertain process requiring innovation and accurate anticipation of
technological and market trends. When changes to the product line are announced, we will be challenged to manage possible-
shortened life cycles for existing products, continue to sell existing products and prevent customers from returning existing products.
Our inability to respond effectively to any of these challenges may have a material adverse effect on our business and financial
success. We may suffer other business and financial losses if we are not successful in marketing new products and responding to.
industry changes and new product introductions or enhancements by our competitors.

We are subject to extensive industry standards and government regulations. Our failure to properly comply with these standards
and regulations could adversely affect our production and sales. ‘

Our product sales are subject to a substantial and complex array of industry driven standards and governmental regulation, both
domestic and foreign, including: ;

¢ industry standards imposed by VISA, Mastercard, and others;
*  certification standards required for connection to some public telecommunications networks; l
¢  Federal Communications Commission regulations; and

¢  Underwriters Laboratories’ regulations.

Our failure to properly comply with these standards and regulations could result in lost product sales, significant costs associated wuh
required remedial measures or production stoppages, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and
future prospects.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

Certain of our existing stockholders have effective voting control over our affairs, which substantially limits your rights as a
stockholder and may affect the market value of our stock. i
George Wallner, our Chairman and Chief Strategist, and his brother, Paul Wallner, together own 44.6% of our outstanding common
stock. Accordingly, the Wallners have the ability to effectively control our affairs, including the election of our Board of Directors.
They can also, except as otherwise provided by law, approve or disapprove other matters submitted to a vote of our stockholders,
including a merger, consolidation, or sale of assets. This voting control also may have the effect of delaying or preventing a change of
control of Hypercom and may affect the price investors are willing to pay in the future for shares of our common stock.

Our stock price has been and may continue to be volatile. Your purchase of our stock will subject you to that volatility and te the
risk of a substantial loss of your investment.

The market price of our common stock has been, and is likely to continue to be, volatile. When we or our competitors announce new
customer orders or services, change pricing policies, experience quarterly fluctuations in operating results, announce strategic
relationships or acquisitions, change earnings estimates, experience government regulatory actions or suffer from generally adverse
economic conditions, our stock price is often affected. Recently, companies similar to ours have experienced extreme price
fluctuations, often for reasons unrelated to their performance.

s




ANNUAL PIEETING

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held on Wednesday,
May 22, 2002 beginning at 9:00 a.m., Arizona time at:
Hypercom Corporation

Corporate Headquarters

2851 West Kathleen Road

Phoenix, AZ 85053

602-504-5000

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR
Computershare Investor Services L1C
350 Indiana Street

Suite 800

Golden, CO 80401

303-262-0600

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Ernst & Young LLP

One Renaissance Square, Suite 2300
Two North Central Avenue
Phoenix, AZ 85004

602-322-3000

OUTSIDE LEGAL COUNSEL
Snell & Wilmer L.L.2

One Arizona Center
Phoenix, AZ 85004-0002
602-382-6000

STCCKHOLDER INFORMATION
For additional investor information,
please direct your request to:
Maureen McGarrigle

Hypercom Corporation

2851 W. Kathleen Road

Phoenix, AZ 85053

Email: mmegarrigle@hypercom.com
Tel: 602-504-4802  Fax: 602-760-0396

Securities Listing

Hypercom Corporation’s Common Stock is traded
on the New York Stock Exchange under the
symbol HYC.

Dividend Policy

The Company has never paid cash dividends on its common
stock. The Company presently intends to retain earnings for
use in the operation and expansion of its business and does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Forward-Looking Statements

This document, including the “Letter to Our Stockholders,” may
contain “forward-looking statements” as that term is defined

in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Forward-looking statements typically are identified by such
terms as “may,” “will,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” and
similar words, and may relate to market share, revenue or
earnings growth, the success of new product introductions,
acquisitions or joint ventures, and other matrers. Hypercom
cautions investors that a variety of factors could cause Hypercom’s
actual events or results to differ materially from those projected
in Hypercom’s forward-looking statements.

The Cautionary Statements of Hypercom contained in Exhibit
99.1 to Hypercom’s Annual Report on Form 10-K enclosed
herein, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, are incorporated into this document by reference.
Investors are referred to such Cautionary Statements for a
description of factors that could affect Hypercom’s operations
and any forward-looking statements in this document.
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